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 VISION, MISSION, VALUES AND GOALS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOALS  

Goal 1 Produce high quality, innovative intellectuals to meet the national and international 

human resource demand. 

Goal 2 Increase graduate employability and empowerment of entrepreneurship 

Goal 3 Improve global compatibility, global links and exchanges  

Goal 4  Increase productivity by effective and efficient utilization of resources   

Goal 5  Empowerment of the university with freedom, competition and uniqueness 

Goal 6 Promote co-existence with mutual respect and ethical behaviour 

To produce innovative intellectual capable of taking challenges in the 

context of global development through the competencies developed 

from the academic programmers, research and training of wide 

nature. 
 

In the spirit of our heritage as educational institute, we serve as a 

keystone in enhancing society through improving knowledge and 

diffusing wisdom for building up better future for all, we are 

committed to our core values of: 

Learning for Life + Excellence + Respect + Integrity + Diversity 

+ Honesty + Innovation + Quality intellectuals  

       To be a center of Excellence in Higher Education and Research 
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VICE CHANCELLOR’S MESSAGE 

 

 

 

 

It is a blessing that Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was established in a sacred land where the 

Buddhist Civilization emerged in the third century B.C. The university has completed twenty-two 

years of Higher Education Service by the year 2018. Six Faculties namely, Faculty of Social 

Sciences and Humanities, Faculty of Management Studies, Faculty of Agriculture, Faculty of 

Applied Sciences, Faculty of Medicine and Allied Sciences, and most recently established Faculty of 

Technology are contributing to host about 6500 students. 

 

In 2018, the number of students enrolled and graduated was 1403 and 1174 respectively. Post 

graduate education is also progressing well and for the Master of Business Administration conducted 

by the Faculty of Management Studies had registered 74 students and number graduated with Master 

degree was 23 and number passed out with diploma was 13 in 2018. Proposal for postgraduate 

program in Agriculture was also approved at the UGC within this year.  Postgraduate Diploma in 

Education conducted by the Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities was offered to 184 graduate 

teachers and it was a higher number than that of 2017.  

 

The Centre for Distance and Continuing Education was to provide learning opportunities to a wide 

spectrum of students through external programs. These programs envisaged to produce skilled, 

knowledgeable and employable Graduates, Diploma holders and Certificate holders in who were not 

qualified for University Education. In 2018, students of the Bachelor of Business Administration 

(External) and Bachelor of Science (external) were also graduated in the convocation. Diploma and 

Certificate course in English, Diploma and Certificate course in Tamil, Diploma and Certificate level 

course in Information Technology are other popular programs continued to offer during this period. 

The income generated by these external courses has been gradually increased and it was 

approximately 30 million for the year. These generated fund has been utilized in improving the 

infrastructure facilities of the university and for the improvement of the human resources both in the 

academic categories and nonacademic categories.  
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There was a considerable improvement in the research and publications of the staff throughout the 

year 2018. During this year, 510 research papers and abstract were published in various journals and 

a book was written by a lecturer.  Participation to the international conferences and seminars was 

also found to satisfactory, in particularly using the generated funds of the faculties. Few academics 

were qualified to receive presidential awards and it was a recognition to the university. The 

university activities have been helpful to place at the 8th position among the Sri Lankan Universities 

through the web metric ranking.    

 

Recruitment of academics and filling of cadres of the nonacademic grades were also continued and 

satisfactory. Moreover, university engaged in the Quality Assurance activities and qualified for 

several grants for faculty improvements, degree level improvements and for nationally important 

research in three faculties namely; Fac. Of Agriculture, Fac. Of Management Studies, Faculty of 

Social Sciences and Humanities. A proposal has been developed to establishment of Faculty of 

Engineering and submitted to the UGC. A proposal has been forwarded to the Asian Development 

bank for the improvements in the Technology Faculty and qualified for a grant of Rs. M. 25 USD. 

 

As supportive programs for the students, Career Guidance activities, Sport activities, Industrial 

trainings and Cultural programs were also facilitated on par with the annual allocations. Many 

community supportive programs have been launched at all the faculties. 

 

Prof. K.H.R. Wijayawardana  
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01. Introduction 
 

The Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was established on 7th November 1995 by the Hon. Richard Pathirana, 

Minister of Education and Higher Education, under the provisions of the Universities Act. No. 16 of 1978 and 

was ceremonially inaugurated by Her Excellency the President on 31st January 1996.  It was established for 

the purpose of providing, promoting and developing higher education in the fields of Social Sciences and 

Humanities, Management Studies, Agricultural Sciences and Applied Sciences, later developed for medical 

education as well. 

 

The University is the successor to the former Affiliated University Colleges at the Central, North-Western and 

North Central Provinces which were amalgamated to form the Rajarata University on the recommendations 

made by a committee appointed by the Hon. Minister of Education and Higher Education in 1995. 

The University has its main campus located at beautiful surroundings of Mihintale, overlooking the Mihintale 

rock temple. This site is historically important as the center at which the Buddhist civilization was introduced.  

It is 10 Km away from the ancient capital of Anuradhapura, the Centre of the world renowned hydraulic 

civilization.  The University has six Faculties of which Faculties of Social Sciences and Humanities, 

Management Studies, Technology and Applied Sciences are located at Mihintale while other two, Faculty of 

Agriculture and Faculty of Medicine and Allied Sciences are located in Puliyankulama and Saliyapura 

respectively. 

This University has the strategic advantage of serving the higher educational needs of the entire North Central 

Province and the country with the resource based available. 

 

01.1 Former Vice Chancellors 

 
List of Vice-Chancellors appointed by the President of the Democratic, Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

1996 – 2002 

Prof. V.I. Siriweera 

 

2002 – 2004 

Prof. K. Wijerathna 

 

2005 – 2006 

Prof. Gamini Samaranayake 

 

2006 – 2012 

Prof. K. A. Nandasena 

 

2013 – 2018 

Prof. K.H.R Wijayawardana 
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01.2. The Governing Council of the University 

 

Prof. K.H.R. Wijayawardana  Vice-Chancellor (Chairman) 

Prof. S.H. Siribaddana   Dean of Faculty of Medicine and Allied  Sciences 

Prof. C.R. Withanachchi  Dean of Faculty of Social Sciences and  Humanities 

Dr. K.G.A. Udaya Kumara  Dean of Faculty of Management Studies 

Dr. A.M.J.B. Adikari   Dean of Faculty of Agriculture 

Dr. (Mrs.) W.M. Sriyani   Dean of Faculty of Applied Sciences  

Dr. B.A. Karunarathne   Dean of Faculty of Technology   

Prof. Ananda Kulasuriya  UGC Appointed Member 

Prof. Asoka Gunawardana  UGC Appointed Member 

Prof. S. Wawwage   UGC Appointed Member 

Dr. M. Ralapanawe   UGC Appointed Member  

Mr. J.  Muththetuwegedara  UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. S.P. Kumara Gunarathna   UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. Kalyanapriya Dahanayake  UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. Sanath Kumarage   UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. W.A.P. Wijesooriya  UGC Appointed Member 

Mr. R.M. Wanninayake   UGC Appointed Member  

Prof. D.T. Mendis   Senate Nominee  

Dr. K.G.P.B. Jayathilake  Senate Nominee 

Mr. S.H. Uwaisulkarni   Acting Registrar/Secretary to the Council 

Mr.D.D. Upananda   Bursar 

 

01.3. Senate 

  

Snr.Prof. K.H.R Wijayawardana  Vice-Chancellor (Chairman) 

Dr. A.M.J.B. Adikari   Dean of Faculty of Agriculture 

Dr. (Mrs.) W.M. Sriyani   Dean of Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. K.G.A. UdayaKumara   Dean of Faculty of Management Studies 

Prof. C.R. Withanachchi  Dean of Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities 

Dr. B.A. Karunarathna   Dean of Faculty of Technology  

Prof. S.H. Siribaddana   Dean of Faculty of Medicine and Allied Sciences 

Dr. S.K. Illangarathna   For Librarian (Actg. Librarian)  (w.e.f. 01.08.2017-02.05.2019) 

 

Faculty of Agriculture  

Mr. T.A.B.D. Sanjeewa   Head of Dept. of plant Science (w.e.f. 05.05.2015-04.05.2018) 

Dr. D.M.D. Dissanayake  Head of Dept. of plant Science (w.e.f. 05.05.2018-04.05.2021) 

Dr. D.M.S. Duminda   Head of Dept. of Agriculture Engineering &Soil Sciences 

Dr. A.M.K.R. Bandara   Head of Dept. of Agriculture Systems 

Dr. P.H.P Prasanna   Head of Dept. of Animal & Food Sciences 
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Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. U. Dahanayake   Head of Dept. of Physical Sciences 

Dr. R.P.G. Vandercone   Head of Dept. of Biological Sciences 

Mr.G.G.N. Duminda   Head of Dept. Of Health Promotion (w.e.f. 01.08.2018-31.07.2021) 

Mr. N.S Weerakoon   Head of Dept. Computing (w.e.f.17.07.2018-16.07.2021) 

 

Faculty of Management Studies  

Dr. W.P Wijewardhana   Head of Dept. of Accountancy & Finance 

Dr. H.M.P.B. Ranaweera  Head of Dept. of Business Management 

Dr. D.M.C. Dasanayake   Head of Dept. of Tourism & Hospitality Management 

 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 

Dr. S.M.A Jayawardhana  Head of Dept. of Anatomy (w.e.f.22.06.2015-21.06.2018) 

Dr. C.S. Paththinige   Head of Dept. of Anatomy (w.e.f.22.06.2018-21.06.2021) 

Dr. S.P Wickramage   Head of Dept. of Physiology 

Mr. W.M. Kumbukgolla   Head of Dept. of Biochemistry 

Dr. N.K.A. Silva   Head of Dept. of Parasitology 

Dr. M.R.P. Weerawansa   Head of Dept. of Medicine 

Mrs. S.C. Illapperuma     Head of Heads of Dept. of Microbiology 

Dr. S.P.B. Thalgaspitiya   Head of Dept. of Surgery 

Dr. T.C. Agampodi   Head of Dept. of Community Medicine 

Dr. N. Hettigama   Head of Dept. of Obstetrics & Gynecology 

Dr. A.B. Senavirathna   Head of Dept. of Forensic Medicine 

Prof. M.A.C.S. Jayasumana  Head of Dept. of Pharmacology 

Dr. M.S.V. Mendis   Head of Dept. Pathology 

Dr. B.A.M Wickramasinghe  Head of Dept. Psychiatry 

Dr. P.H.G.J. Pushpakumara  Head of Dept. Family Medicine  

 

Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities 

Dr. R.P.I.R Prasanna   Head of Dept. of Social Sciences (w.e.f.15.05.2015-14.05.2018) 

Dr. S.W.G.K. Bulankulama  Head of Dept. of Social Sciences (w.e.f.15.05.2018-14.09.2021) 

Dr. (Rev.) O. Chandrasiri  Head of Dept. of Humanities (w.e.f.01.08.2015-31.07.2018) 

Mr. D.J.K. Ihalagedara   Head of Dept. of Humanities (w.e.f.01.08.2018-31.07.2021) 

Prof. D.T Mendis   Head of Dept. of Archaeology & Heritage Management 

Mr. N.S.K Herath   Head of Dept. of Environmental Management 

Mr.W.M.T. Weerasekara  Head of Dept. of Language (w.e.f.12.10.2017-01.08.2018) 

Mrs. M.T.C.H. Kumari   Head of Dept. of Language (w.e.f.14.11.2018-13.11.2121) 

Mr. R.M Dhanapala   Head of Dept. English Language Teaching 

 

Faculty of Technology 

Dr. T.C. Bamunuarachchige  Head of Dept. of Bioprocess Technology 

Mr. H.K.S. De Zoysa   Head of Dept. of Food Technology (w.e.f.01.10.2017-30.04.2020) 

Dr. R.G.P.T. Jayasooriya  Head of Dept. of Food Technology (w.e.f.02.07.2018-01-07-2021) 

Dr. K.G.P.B. Jayathilaka  Head of Dept. of Electric & Electronic Technology 

Ms. L.M.D. Premasiri   Head of Dept. Information & Communication Technology  

Ms. A.J.M.H.L. Senevirathna  Materials Technology  
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Professors 

Prof. Y.M Wickramasinghe  Faculty of Agriculture (w.e.f.15.10.2009-30.09.2018) 

Snr.Prof. P.A. Weerasinghe  Faculty of Agriculture 

Prof Sanatha Hettiarachchi  Faculty of Applied Sciences (Sabbatical Leave- w.e.f.15.10.2018-20.04.2019)  

Snr.Prof. A Lagamuwa   Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities 

Prof Senananayakkara   Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities  
     (Sabbatical Leave- w.e.f.01.10.2018-30.09.2020) 

Prof S.B. Agampodi   Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences  

Prof. H.M.A.M.C. Herath  Faculty of Applied Sciences  

Prof. D.M.W.K Dissanayake  Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities (w.e.f.01-08-2015-31.07.2018) 

Prof. M.A.C.S. Jayasumana  Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 

 

Faculty Nominee 

Dr. D.M.D. Dissanayake             Faculty of Agriculture  

Dr. W.A.D. Nayananjalie  Faculty of Agriculture  

Mr. G.V.T.V. Weerasooriya  Faculty of Agriculture    

Mr. G.G.N. Duminda   Faculty of Applied Sciences (w.e.f.25.09.2017-07.11.2018) 

Dr. H.O. Wijewardane   Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. M. Fernando   Faculty of Applied Sciences  

Mrs. C.T Gamage   Faculty of Management Studies  

Mr. W.W.A.N. Sujeewa   Faculty of Management Studies  

Dr. S.W.G.K. Bulankulama  Faculty of Social & Humanities  

Dr. M.K.L. Irangani   Faculty of Social & Humanities 

Dr. J.M.S.B. Jayasundara  Faculty of Social & Humanities  

Dr. R.G.P.T. Jayasooriya  Faculty of Technology 

Mr.K.Prashanth    Faculty of Technology 

Mr. H.N.B.R. Abeysinghe  Faculty of Technology  

Dr. S.P.A.S. Senadheera   Faculty of Medicine & Allied Science 

Dr. D.M.A. Kumara   Faculty of Medicine & Allied Science  

 

01.4. Administrative Staff 

 

Mr. AMGB Abeysinghe   Registrar 

Mr. DD Upananda   Bursar 

Mr. S.M. Seelaratne   Work Engineer 

Mr. SH Uwisulkarni   Deputy Registrar 

Mr. NCS Senaka   Deputy Registrar 

Mr. E.W.M.S.U. Wijesinghe  Director of Physical Education 

Mr. S.S.K Godakumbura  Deputy Bursar 

Mr. SAI Somarathna   Senior Assistant Registrar 

Mr. MGL Maveekumbura  Senior Assistant Bursar 

Mr. C. Hettige    Senior Assistant Registrar 

Mr. D.M.C.U.K. Dissanayake  Senior Assistant Registrar (Library Services) 

Mr. M.M.U. Keerthirathna  Senior Assistant Registrar (Left from 15.10.2018) 

Mr. M.M.S. Sanjeewa   Senior Assistant Registrar 
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Mr. NDJ Ranaweera   Chief Marshal 

Mr. W.B. Dissanayake   Senior Assistant Registrar 

Mrs. HP Gunawardhene   Assistant Registrar 

Mr. DMR Samantha   Assistant Bursar 

Mrs. WMRS Rupasinghe  Assistant Internal Auditor (Left from 15.10.2018) 

Mrs. M.A.N.N Kumari   Personal Secretary to Vice Chancellor 

Mr. WMK Upuldeniya   Assistant Registrar 

Mr. M Arunshakar   Assistant Registrar 

Mrs. SDSK Samaratjhunga  Assistant Registrar (Left from 15.10.2018) 

Mrs. HSMDSM Samarakone  Assistant Registrar (Left from 15.10.2018) 

Mr. JMSK Jayalath   Assistant Bursar 

Mr. BWNJ Samaraweera  Farm Manager 

Mrs. RMS Rathnayake   Assistant Bursar 

Ms. PJ Senevirathna   Assistant Registrar 

Mrs. RMPD Rathnayake  Assistant Registrar (L & D) 

Mrs. DMNS Dissanayake  Assistant Registrar 

Ms. CD Fernando   Assistant Internal Auditor (From 15.10.2018) 

Ms. IK Dodanwela   Assistant Bursar (From 15.10.2018) 

Ms. VN Prasanshani   Assistant Bursar (From 15.10.2018) 

Ms. V Kirushnananthy   Assistant Registrar (From 15.10.2018) 

Mr. MADPI Makevita   Assistant Registrar (From 03.12.2018) 
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01.5. Organization Structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

12 
 
 

 

R A J A R A T A  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  S R I  L A N K A  

A n n u a l  R e p o r t            2 0 1 8  

 

02. CURRENT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 
 

02.1. Highlight of the Students Intake  

 

02.2. Highlight of Graduate Output  

 

02.3. Highlight of Academic Staff 

 

 

 

 

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Faculty of Agriculture 135 115 154 165 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 148 157 365 308 

Faculty of Management Studies 350 376 430 475 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 180 180 180 180 

Faculty of Social Science & Humanities 326 349 569  

Faculty of Technology - 238 274 275 

Total 1139 1415 1972 1403 

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Faculty of Agriculture 85 83 68 75 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 187 142 173 346 

Faculty of Management Studies 260 231 291 282 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 172 174 182 172 

Faculty of Social Science & Humanities 185 291 432 302 

Total 889 921 1146 1174 

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Faculty of Agriculture 38 38 48 45 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 39 41 42 41 

Faculty of Management Studies 37 40 47 47 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 46 46 49 48 

Faculty of Social Science & Humanities 46 37 45 49 

Faculty of Technology   15 15 

Library System 6 8 7 7 

Total 212 210 253 252 
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02.4. Highlights of Administrative and Non Academic Staff 

 

02.5. Highlights of Web Ranking of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka 

 

02.6. Hostel Facilities 

 

02.7. Significant events 

 

 Annual Convocation 

18th Convocation of the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was held on 30th and 31st of May 2018. 

 Speech on “Antivenoms in the treatment of neurotoxic snakebite: effectiveness and 

limitations" 

Dr.Anjana Silva, Senior Lecturer, Department of Parasitology, delivered the prestigious Dr.S. 

Ramachandran oration of the Sri Lanka Medical Association (SLMA) at the 131st Anniversary 

International Medical Congress of the SLMA held at Galadari Hotel, Colombo on 29th July 2018. The 

title of the oration was "Antivenoms in the treatment of neurotoxic snakebite: effectiveness and 

limitations". 

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Faculty of Agriculture 37 42 47 50 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 37 37 38 35 

Faculty of Management Studies 16 18 18 19 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 74 78 79 80 

Faculty of Social Science & Humanities 17 18 22 22 

Faculty of Technology   4 8 

Other Divisions 211 227 218 251 

Total 392 420 426 465 

Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 

World Rank 9684 4433 4508 6137 

Presence Rank 7825 948 2768 1782 

Impact Rank 13128 13622 13617 13898 

Openness Rank 4392 3397 3863 4121 

Excellence Rank 5414 3617 3510 3642 

Sri Lankan Rank 11 8 8 9 

Faculty Male Female Total 
Faculty of Agriculture 161 436 597 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 400 575 975 

Faculty of Management Studies 611 884 1495 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 360 651 1011 

Faculty of Social Science & Humanities 206 1148 1354 

Faculty of Technology 282 216 498 
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02.8. Competitions 

 

 BITCODE- 2018  

The Business Information Technology Unit, Faculty of Management Studies of Rajarata University of Sri 

Lanka organized the BITCODE 2018 successfully in first time in the Cultural Hall on 30th of October 

2018. The main objectives of the competition were: to improve students’ logical ability, to enhance 

student knowledge and skills in relation to computer programming. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Games 

This year was a very successful one for the sports sector. The University teams were participated 

several friendly and Invitation matches with other University teams and some recognized club teams 

and our Elle, Hockey, Chess, Karate and Cricket teams performed well at the tournaments.  
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02.9. Social and Environment Collaboration 

 

 Walk to Conserve Malwathu Oya 

Students and the academic staff of the Department of Agricultural Engineering and Soil Science in 

collaborate with the Arthacharya Foundation organized a walk on 29th of December 2018 to raise the 

awareness on conservation of Malwathu Oya.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Jaffna Kantharodai Expedition training program  
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 G.C.E. Advanced Level workshop for Science students In North Central Province 

 

Students in Faculty of Applied Science held annual workshop for the students who are expecting to face for 

the Advanced Level in North Central province as societal contribution to the country. Biology, Mathematics, 

Physics, Chemistry, ICT and Technology subjects were revision through this workshop. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Social and Ethnic Harmony 

 

First year students in Faculty of Management Studies held Ganadevi Pujawa to enhance the social and 

ethical harmony among students. 
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02.10. Research conferences 

 

 4th International Research Symposium - Investing in Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services (ISIBES 

2018) with the theme of ‘’Caring Nature – Creating Wealth’’. 

 10th Annual Research Symposium of Faculty of Agriculture 

 2nd National Research Symposium on Management of the Faculty (NRSM 2018) 

 1st undergraduate research symposium of Faculty of Medicine and Allied Science 

 3rd Research Undergraduate Symposium on Archaeology 2018 

 Applied Sciences Undergraduate Research Sessions (ASURS-2018) 

 National Research Symposium on Historical Studies (NRSHS) - 2018, in January, 2018 

 

02.11. Journals 

 

 Rajarata University Journal 

 The Journal of Archaeology and Heritage Studies 2018 

 “Samodhana” Faculty of Social Sciences 

 Issued two volumes of the Faculty journal "Journal of Management Matters" in the year 2018.  

 Rajarata Journal of Social Sciences 

 

03. DETAILS OF STUDENTS AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Faculty/Other Total Students 
Total Academic Staff 

(Permanent) 

Total Non-Academic 

Staff (Permanent) 

Agriculture 483 45 50 

Applied Sciences 708 40 37 

Management Studies 1516 48 19 

Medicine & Allied Sciences 1074 47 80 

Social Science & Humanities 1329 49 22 

Technology 508 15 8 

Library - 7 42 

Other - - 207 

Total 5618 251 465 
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04. DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS 

 

Programme of Study Year of Study Number of Students 

Faculty of Agriculture 

B.Sc. (Special) in Agriculture Year I  -I 153 

Year II-II 115 

Year III-II 132 

Year IV-II 83 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

B.Sc. (General) Degree in Applied Sciences -

Biology 

Year I-II 158 

Year II-II 48 

Year III-II 43 

B.Sc. (General) Degree in Applied Sciences - 

Physics 

Year I-II 95 

Year II-II 17 

Year III-II 25 

B.Sc. (General) Degree in Health Promotion Year I-II 37 

Year II-II 16 

Year III-II 09 

B.Sc. (General) Degree in Information & 

Communication Technology 

Year I-II 75 

Year II-II 76 

Year III-II 66 

B.Sc. (4 Year) Degree in Applied Sciences Year IV Semester II 07 

B.Sc. (4 Year) Degree in Industrial Mathematics Year IV Semester II 06 

B.Sc. (4 Year) Degree in Information & 

Communication Technology 

Year IV Semester II 04 

B.Sc. (Joint Major) Degree in Chemistry & Physics Year IV Semester II 03 

B.Sc. (Special) Degree in Chemistry Year IV Semester II 11 

B.Sc. (Special) Degree in Health Promotion Year IV Semester II 05 

B.Sc. (Special) Degree in Applied Sciences -

Biology 

Year IV Semester II 07 

Faculty of Management Studies 

B.Sc. (Special) Year I 416 

Year II 376 

Year III 350 

Year IV 374 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences 

MBBS New Entrance 179 

Year I 180 

Year II 180 

Year III 177 

Year IV 179 

Year V 179 
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Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities 

B.A. (General) Degree Programme Year I-II 526 

Year II-I 209 

Year III-I 191 

B.A. (Special) Degree Programme Year II-I 140 

Year III-I 135 

Year IV-I 128 

Faculty of Technology 

B.A. (Special) Degree Programme Year I 270 

Year II 238 

 

05. ACADEMIC STAFF 

 

05.1. Details of Academic Staff (Permanent) 

 

Staff Salary Scale Approved Cadre 
Permanent Staff Cadre 

Vacancies Male Female Total 

Faculty of Agriculture 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

55 

0 1 1 

10 

Professor U-AC 5 (II)    

Associate Professor U-AC 4    

Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 19 11 30 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 1 2 3 

Prob. Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 5 6 11 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

41 

   

2 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 3 0 3 

Associate Professor U-AC 4    

Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 10 6 16 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 5 0 5 

Prob. Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 6 9 15 

Faculty of Management Studies 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

54 

1 0 1 

7 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 2 0 2 

Associate Professor U-AC 4    

Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 17 8 25 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 3 0 3 

Prob. Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 7 9 16 

Faculty of Medical and Allied Sciences 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

107 

   

59 Professor U-AC 5 (II) 3 0 3 

Associate Professor U-AC 4    
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Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 21 7 28 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 2 3 5 

Prob. Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 4 8 12 

Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

61 

1 0 1 

12 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 4 0 4 

Associate Professor U-AC 4    

Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 19 6 25 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 9 2 11 

Prob. Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 6 2 8 

Faculty of Technology 

Senior Lecturer U-AC 3(I) - (II) 
16 

5 0 5 
-1 

Lecturer U-AC 3(IV) 4 6 10 

Library System 

Librarian U-AC 5 

11 

0 1 1 

4 
Senior Assistant 

Librarian Grade I/II 
U-AC 4 2 3 5 

Assistant Librarian U-AC 3 0 1 1 

Total  345 159 91 250 93 

 

05.2. Details of Academic Support Staff 

 

Post Number of Positions 

Career Advisor/Career Counselors 2 

Programmer Cum Systems Analyst, Grade II 2 

Assistant Network Manager 1 

Assistant Statistician 1 

System Engineer - 

Instructor in Physical Education 5 

Instructor in Computer Technology 3 

Instructor in English 3 

Total 17 
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06. ADMINISTRATIVE & NON- ACADEMIC STAFF (PERMANENT) 

 

Staff Category Salary Scale 
Approved 

Cadre 

Permanent Staff Cadre 

Vacancies Male Female Total 

Administrative Staff 

U-EX 3 2 2 0 2 0 

U-EX 2 9 7 0 7 2 

U-EX 1 17 5 10 15 2 

Other Executive Staff 

U-EX 3      

U-EX 2 4 4 0 4 0 

U-EX 1 2 1 1 2 0 

U-MO 2      

U-MO 1 2    2 

Technical Staff 

U-EX 2 

76 

   

19 

U-EX 1    

U-MN 4 2 1 3 

U-MN 3 1 0 1 

U-MN 2 2 0 2 

U-MN 1 0 0 0 

U-MT 1 31 20 51 

Clerical & Allied 

U-MN 4  5 9 14 -14 

U-MN 3 18 8 8 16 2 

U-MN 2 4 2 0 2 2 

U-MN 1 173 44 88 132 41 

Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 49 74 9 83 -34 

U-PL 2 57 16 6 22 35 

U-PL 1 128 76 33 109 19 

Total 541 280 185 465 76 
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07. DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS 
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08. DETAILS OF AWARDS RECEIVED 

 

Name of the Award 
National/ 

International 

Name of the Awardee 

and Country 

Name/s of the Recipient 

(Student/Staff/Department/ 

Faculty/University) 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 2016 
National Sri Lanka 

Dr. DMSH Dissanayaka 

 

Excellent paper Award International South Korea Mr. MHJP Gunarathna 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Prof. Sisira Siribaddana, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Prof. Suneth Agampodi, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Prof. Channa Jayasumana, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr. JAAS Jayaweera, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr. Anjana Silva, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr Prasanna Weerawansa, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr Senaka Pilapitiya, 

Merit Awards for Scientific 

Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr. Rathis Devarajan, 

KSM Research Prize National 
Kandy Society of 

Medicine, Sri Lanka 
Prof. Suneth Agampodi, 

Best Poster Presentation 

Award 
National 

Anuradhapura Clinical 

Society, Sri Lanka 
Dr MGRSS Gunathilake, 

Best Oral Presenter International 

Asia Pacific 

Association of Medical 

Toxicology 

Dr. Anjana Silva, 

Best Oral Presentation National 
Anuradhapura Clinical 

Society, Sri Lanka 
Dr Dinesha Jayasundara, 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr. J.L. Rathnasekara 

President's Awards for 

Scientific Publication 
National *NRC, Sri Lanka Dr. T.M.W.J. Bandara 

*NRC - National Research Council 

 

 

 

 

 



 

24 
 
 

 

R A J A R A T A  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  S R I  L A N K A  

A n n u a l  R e p o r t            2 0 1 8  

 

09. DETAILS OF COURSES 

 

09.1. Internal Courses 

 

Name of the Course 

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

 

M
ed

iu
m

 

Faculty of Agriculture 

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture (Special) Degree 4 year English 

Faculty of Applied Science 

Bachelor of Science (Special) Degree in Applied Biology 4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Four-year) Degree in Applied sciences 4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Four-year) Degree in Industrial Mathematics 4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Four-year )Degree Information & Communication 

Technology 

4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Special) Degree in Health promotion  4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (General )Degree in Applied Sciences 3 year English 

Bachelor of Science (General )Degree in Health promotion  3 year English 

Bachelor of Science (General )Degree in Information &Communication 

Technology 

3 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Joint Major )Degree in Chemistry & physics 4 year English 

Bachelor of Science (Honors) in Chemistry  4 year English 

Faculty of Management Studies 

Bachelor of Science (Accountancy & Finance) Special Degree 4 year English 

Bachelor of  Science (Business Management) Special Degree 4 year English 

Bachelor of  Science (Business  Information Technology) Special Degree 4 year English 

Bachelor of  Science (Tourism & Hospitality Management) Special Degree 4 year English 

Faculty of Medicine and Allied Sciences 

Bachelor of Medicine & Bachelor of surgery Degree 5 year English 

Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities 

Bachelor of  Arts (Special) Degree 4 year Sinhala/English 

Bachelor of  Arts (General) Degree  3 year Sinhala 

Faculty of Technology 

Bachelor of Bio System Technology in Bio-Process Technology 4 year English 

Bachelor of Bio System Technology in Food Technology 4 year English 

Bachelor of Engineering Technology in Electrical & Electronic Technology 4 year English 

Bachelor of Engineering Technology in Materials Technology 4 year English 

Bachelor of Information & Communication Technology 4 year English 
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09.2 Other Courses 

 

Name of the Course Duration Medium 

Certificate Courses 

Certificate Course in English (English Language Teaching Unit) One Year English 

Certificate Course in Tamil Language (faculty of social sciences & 

Humanities) 
One Year Tamil/Sinhala 

Certificate Course in ICT (Computer Centre) Six Months English/Sinhala 

Certificate Course in Complement and Alternative   Medicine (faculty of 

Medicine &Allied Sciences) 
Six Months Sinhala 

Diploma Courses 

Diploma Course in English (English Language Teaching Unit) One Year English 

Diploma Course in Tamil Language (faculty of social sciences & 

Humanities) 
One Year Tamil 

Diploma Course in ICT (Computer Centre) One Year English 

Complement and Alternative   Medicine (faculty of Medicine &Allied 

Sciences) 
One Year Sinhala 

Diploma in Business Economics One Year Sinhala 

Diploma in Environment Management  One Year Sinhala 

External Degree Programms 

Bachelor of Business Administration (General)External Degrees Three Year Sinhala 

B.sc. External Degree Programme (Biological/physical sciences) Three Year English 

Post Graduate Programms 

Post Graduate Diploma in Management  One Year  English 

Master of Business Administration Two Year English 

Post Graduate Diploma in Education 18 Months Sinhala 

Post Graduate Diploma in Child Protection One Year English 
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10. DETAILS OF RECURRENT EXPENDITURE 

 

Subject 2017 (Rs.) 2018 (Rs.) 

a. Personal Emoluments 950,263,040.00 1,175,963,502.98 

b. Travelling Expenses 9,087,807.00 5,537,506.90 

c. Supplies 54,448,581.00 58,015,062.49 

d. Maintenance Expenses 27,175,841.00 20,686,027.31 

e. Contractual Services 256,146,360.00 223,428,363.77 

f. Other 61,780,162.00 66,004,848.64 

Total 1,358,901,892.00 1,549,635,312.09 

 

11. DETAILS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

 

Subject 2018 (Rs.) 

Acquisition of furniture & office 40,269,528.36 

Land 2,266,494.66 

Infrastructure assets 12,059,024.51 

IT Equipment's 23,490,877.23 

Lab & Teaching 25,992,501.15 

Sports Equipment 4,244,700.00 

Acquisition of Machineries 4,858,450.22 

Motor vehicles  

Acquisition of Building & Structures 46,644,660.13 

Library and Periodicals 5,780,159.71 

Cloaks & Garlands 352,450.00 

Work in Progress & Mobilization Advances 305,070,708.52 

Total 471,029,554.49 

 

12. DETAILS OF PROJECTS (LOCAL/FOREIGN FUNDED) 

 

Name & Details Loan/Grant 
Funding 

Agency 
TCE Rs. 

RFA 

Rs. 
DF Rs. 

Addressing Global Burden of 

Laptospirosis in Two endemic 

Countries 

Grant 

University 

of 

California 

419914(US$) - - 

NSF Research Grant Grant NSF    

Academic Research-UGC Phd 

Grants 
Grant RUSL 3,298,850.00  3,298,850.00 

Total   3,298,850.00  3,298,850.00 
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13. DETAILS OF PROJECTS EXPENDITURE (LOCAL/FOREIGN FUNDED) 

 

Name & Details TCE Rs. 
Exp in 2017 

Rs 

Exp in 2018 

Rs 

Cumulative 

Exp. as at 

31.12.2018 

Rs. 

% of 

Physical 

Progress 

 

Addressing Global 

Burden of Laptospirosis 

in Two endemic Countries 

419914(US$) 13,876.392.70 14,709,450.78 39,048,424.98 70% 

NSF Research Grant  700,000.00 764,750.00 1,464,750.00  

Academic Research-2016   10,833,814.00  100% 

Academic Research-2017  5,153,960.00 2,859,900.00 8,013,860.00  

Academic Research-2018 10,000,000.00  617,146.00 617,146.00 43% 

Total 10,000,000.00 19,730,352.70 29,785,060.78 49,144,180.98  

 

14. DETAILS OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS (EXPENDITURE) 

 

Subject 
Provision in 2018 

Rs 
Exp in 2018 Rs Saving/Excess Rs 

Recurrent except Project 1,494,150,000.00 1,549,635,312.00 (55,485,312.00) 

Capital except Project 790,000,000.00 471,029,554.49 318,970,445.51 

Project - Local Funded - 15,075,610.00 - 

Project - Foreign funded - 14,709,450.78 - 

Total 2,284,150,000.00 2,020,664,866.49 263,485,133.51 

 

15. DETAILS OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS (GENERATED INCOME) 

 

Source of Revenue 
Provision in 

2018 (Rs.) 

Collection in 

2018 (Rs.) 
Deficit / Surplus 

a. Undergraduate Studies 5,600,000.00 5,977,889.00 (377,889.00) 

b. External Degree Programmes  20,856,066.00  

c. Diplomas English/ICT  1,479,542.00  

d. Postgraduate Studies    17,600,000.00 7,202,812.00      (12,673,479.00) 

e. Certificate Course   735,059.00  

f, Consultancies    

g. Other 15,450,000.00 32,658,411.00 (17,208,411.00) 

Total    38,650,000.00  68,909,779.00 (30,259,779.00) 
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16. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS IN 2018 

 

Subject 

Faculty 

M
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Recurrent Expenditure per Student (RE) 421,200 421,034 554,849 273,181 295,857 220,596 

Capital Expenditure per Student (CE) 72,555 96,443 143,519 48,340 57,554 98,748 

Total 493,755 517,477 698,398 321,521 353,411 319,344 

   

 

17. DETAILS OF INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES RECEIVED IN 2018 

 

Infrastructure 
Expenditure Rs 

(Mn) 

Physical 

Progress 

Land  
 

Expenditure on acquisition of lands                 

2,266,494.66  
On Going 

Building   

Expenditure on Constructions of buildings 7,012,323.07 Completed 

Technology Building -Phase 1 75,597,133.96 On Going 

Auditorium Main building 9,702,728.81 On Going 

CDCE Building  751,329.96 On Going 

Technology Building (Phase II & Phase III) 1,152,348.14 On Going 

Design, Construction, Completion Pre Clinical Building for 

Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences at Saliyapura 
1,168,695.65 On Going 

Fabricating, Supplying of Furniture and Civil Works in Proposed 

Museum for Fac. of Social Sciences & Humanities  
479,551.50 On Going 

Student Hostels Improvement    

Cons Of 2 Nos Septic -Somadevi Hostel 1,749,370.92 Completed 

Septic Tank Hostel 7&8 Mihinthale Premises 1,723,857.13 Completed 

Construction of 2 Nos. Septic Tanks, 4 Nos. Soakage pits, & 2 Nos, 

Wetland unit for F of Agriculture (Uthpalawanna Hostel) 
1,402,803.59 Completed 

Construction of Storm Water Drainage and Pavement for 250 Girls 

Hostel in Fac. of Agriculture 
1,120,125.66 Completed 

Renovation of Student Hostel -FMAS 822,706.41 On Going 

Rain Water System- 200 student hostel - Agriculture 216,264.81 On Going 

Infrastructure Development    

Renovation of Earth Drain- Rambawa Premises 625,965.35 Completed 
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Expenditure on Road construction -Fac. of Social Science from Milk 

Bar 
5,436,901.86 Completed 

Main Entrance Type A Stage I&II 789,071.66 On Going 

Main Entrance Type A Stage II 14,652,446.07 On Going 

Main Entrance Type B -Stage I 6,731,145.07 On Going 

Main Entrance Type B -Stage II 9,486,611.15 On Going 

Modification of Bus Garage -Mihinthale premise 357,507,62 On Going 

Boundary wall around Swimming pool 3,268,269.07 On Going 

Boundary Wall -Applied Science 4,872,356.34 On Going 

Construction of Volley ball coat -Fac. of Agriculture 595,021.97 On Going 

Improvement of Main Access Road to Fac. or Agriculture 997,840.92 On Going 

Construction of Main entrance Landscaping works 5,716,958.90 On Going 

Solid Waste Management Project under CEA Grant 5,858,313.12 On Going 

Rehabilitation of Assets   

Capital Nature Rehabilitation works 49,216,520.45 Completed 

Staff Quarters   

Quarters Complex - FOAG   

Quarters Complex -Registrar/Bursar & Staff 147,119,603.90 On Going 

Technology Staff - 4 Nos. Twin Quarters   

3 Nos. Twin Quarters - FMAS 13,290,608.55 On Going 

Staff Quarters - Rambawa premises 1,444,194.90 On Going 

   

Kitchen for main canteen   

Total 375,625,071.17  
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18. FACULTY OF AGRICULTURE 

 

A. Introduction 

 

Faculty of Agriculture, Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was established in 2001 with 17 students.  Faculty 

offers a special degree programme in Agriculture with the aim of developing sustainable agricultural systems 

particularly focused on the production environment of the Dry Zone of Sri Lanka. The degree programme 

comprises eight semesters, during which courses from different agriculture based disciplines are offered. At 

present, faculty consists of four academic departments, namely Agricultural Engineering and Soil Science, 

Agricultural Systems, Animal and Food Sciences and Plant Sciences. In addition, faculty has a Computer 

Unit, English Language Teaching Unit, Faculty Farm and a library. Soil Science, Plant Science and Animal 

and Food Sciences and GIS laboratories together with Agricultural Engineering workshop provide 

opportunities for undergraduates to improve their analytical and other skills. 

 

Faculty admits annually 165 students and on-campus residential facilities are provided for all entitled 

students. The total number of academic and non-academic staff employed in the faculty at present is over 90.  

The degree program consists of core program and a specialization module. The core program is compulsory 

for all students and spanning through the first five semesters. During the 6th and 7th semesters, students are 

allowed to select the specialization module on their preference. At the final semester, students should 

undertake an independent research project which carries six credits and submit a comprehensive research 

report based on their project.  

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Cabinet approval was granted for constructing a Laboratory cum lecture halls complex 

 10th Annual Research Symposium was successfully conducted and proceedings were published. 

 Conducted a practical programme for 200 A/L students (Bio-systems and Agriculture) in North 

Central Province  

 Faculty was successfully engaged with “Rajarata Sewaya” on Knowledge dissemination Programme 

in Agriculture  

 Approval from Quality Assurance Council and Standing Committee of the UGC for the proposed 

postgraduate degree program has been taken. 

 Winning of AHEAD grant (Rs. 120 million) for the Faculty development. 

 Collaboration of research project (Rs. 12.63 million) with the Presidential Secretariat and the Ministry 

of Science, Technology and Research on “A multidisciplinary approach for developing a research 

platform for sustainable cropping systems in the Dry Zone of Sri Lanka”. 

 Collaboration with the Sri Lanka Inventors Commission to initiate an Incubator Centre at Faculty of 

Agriculture, RUSL.  
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C. Failure and Justifications 

 

 Implementation of a postgraduate degree program due to pending approval from the UGC 

commission. 

 Improvement of internal road system of the faculty premises was failed due to bankruptcy of the 

contractor. 

 Improvement of farm road system was not started due to lack of funds 

 

D. Future Plans 

 

 Implementation of postgraduate degree programs in Agriculture 

 Conducting workshops and training programs for farming community, teachers and A/L students 

 Expansion of the livestock unit of the faculty farm 

 Initiation of faculty e-journal 

 Collaboration of research projects with local and international institutions 

 Establishment of a laboratory cum lecture halls complex  

 Establishment of the dairy and meat processing units with all necessary facilities 

 Organizing of 11th Annual Research Symposium of the faculty 

 Improvement of internal road network of the faculty and the farm 

 Construction of fences around the faculty farm and new land (Block 3) 

 Construction of quarters for academic and non-academic staff members 

 Improvement of the aesthetic view of the faculty 

 

  

 

 

 

  

  

 

  

   

  

 

  

 

10th Annual research symposium 2018 
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19. FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES 

 

A. Introduction  

 

The Rajarata University of Sri Lanka (RUSL) was established in November 1995 by the Gazette 

Notification No: 896/2 of 7th November 1995 in the Administrative District of Anuradhapura. The Central 

Province Affiliated University College (CPAUC) in Polgolla, located at a distance of 140 km from the main 

campus at Mihintale was amalgamated to the RUSL as its Faculty of Applied Sciences (FASc). The 

immediate task of the FASc at that time was to upgrade all the students of the CPAUC who had successfully 

completed their Diploma requirements, to the Graduate level. On this task the FASc was inaugurated on 10th 

January, 1997 to commence the third year Degree Programme with a batch of 102 students, who 

subsequently graduated in 1998. The first batch of students who were directly sent by the UGC to follow the 

degree programme was enrolled in November 1997.  

 

After functioning for nearly 10 years at Polgolla, the Faculty was finally established in the premises of the 

main campus at Mihintale, on 16th January 2006 upon completion of Stage I of the building complex. In 

2011 completed Stage II building and Administrative block established in this new building complex. There 

were two new laboratories namely Tissue Culture and Aquaculture Field Laboratory developed under the 

grant received from DeyataKilula Project in 2013. A new physics laboratory and lecture halls constructed in 

2017. Another new two stories building completed in 2018 to full fill the requirements for the academic 

staff. In 2018, two new departments namely Department of Health Promotion and Department of 

Computing established. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Awarded presidential awards to Dr. Wijendra Bandara and Prof. Jayantha Ratnasekara for 

scientific research publication    

 Won best presenter award Ms.Deshika Muthuthantrige (undergraduate) from 23rd 

International Forestry Symposium organized by University of Sri Jayewardenepura in 2018                                

 Conducted Workshop on Biology for G.C.E. A/L Teachers 

 Conducted G.C.E. A/L workshop on Biology, Mathematics, Physics , Chemistry,ICT and Technology 

 Applied Sciences Undergraduate Research Sessions (ASURS-2018) was successfully conducted 

and proceedings were published. 

 4th place of the “LetMeHack” inter university hackathon organized by the Sabaragamuwa University 

of Sri Lanka. 

 Conducted Workshop on Drug prevention (Field work) 

 Finalists of the HackaDevhackathon competition organized by UNDP 

 Drug prevention stall in "Yowun Pura " exhibition. (5 days) 

 Community  symposium  titled on "Weneswena ape game withthi" 

 TV programme on addressing alcohol, tobbacco and other drug related harm 

 TV programme on child wellbeing and child protection  

 26 training workshops conducted by the Department of Biological Science for the undergraduate 

students 
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 43 Research was conducted by the faculty members. 21 journal article, 4 full papers and 70 

abstracts were published in internationally and locally. 

 

C. Failure and Justifications 

 

 Improvement of faculty  road was not started due to lack of funds 

 Partitioning the ground floor and expansion of 2nd and 3rd floors of staff room building was not started 

due to financial problem.  

 Establishment of Department of Chemical Science was delay due to too much of workload for the 

existing staff. 

 Acquisition of Ayurvedic Research Institute land adjacent to the Faculty was postponed due 

communication gap  

 Since we received high number of students as in university Handbook, we faced a problem of 

conducting practical sessions and lectures due to lack of spaces. However we covered the required 

practical sessions with minimum facilities. Time table was dragged 8 am to 7 pm 

 Too much of workload for the staff members due to requested cadre was not approved. Therefore 

could not introduce special degree programs for Physics and Computer Science. 

 

D. Future Plans 

 

Infrastructure Development  

 Establishment of Stage III Building  

 Chemistry Laboratory facilities to be improved in order to handle higher number of students.  

 Acquisition of Ayurvedic Research Institute land adjacent to the Faculty  

 Establish museum for Zoology Laboratory to house zoological specimens that will be used in 

teaching. 

 Improve the faculty road and complete the 2nd and 3rd floors of staff room in extension building  

 

Curriculum and Human Resource Development  

 Recruitment of Academics: Plan to recruit senior academics (PhD holders) for all the discipline  

 Introducing a new discipline: An honors degree programme in the discipline of Data Science to be 

introduced to cater the demand of the Industrial and government sectors. 

 Introduce a four year special degree in computer science and physics. 

 Introduce Master Degree Programme in Environment Management and Technology 

 Introduce Master Degree Programme in Herbal Technology  

 Conduct the curriculum revision in Health Promotion , Information Technology, Mathematics and 

Physics  

 Organize student research symposium collaboration with other universities to improve research and 

presentation skills of undergraduates. 

 Organize training workshops for staff on lesson preparation techniques, website development and 

research skills.  

 Organizing to initiate a student exchange program with international universities  
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 Industrial visits:Organize industrial visits for the undergraduate students to expose themselves to 

the Industrial environment and also to provide a first-hand experience in the industrial related 

activities 

 

National Development  

 Conducting workshops for community to transfer knowledge and technology.  

 Organize training workshops and opportunities for students in the areas of fisheries and 

aquaculture, microbiology, botany and zoology to develop knowledge and capacity of students.  

 Organizing for teachers and students in the North Central Province to improve the quality of 

education in the schools.  

 Expect to develop the National Strategic Plan for Early Childhood Care and Development (ECCD)  

 Plan to strengthen our partnerships with other ministries, especially with Ministry of Education and 

Ministry of Women and Child Affairs. 

 

 

Workshop conducted for the A/L/teachers and students 

 

 

ICT students achievements (upper) and Staff with Best Presenters in Undergraduate Research 

Symposium (ASURS-2018) (below) 
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20. FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES 

 

A. Introduction  

 

With the prime objective of introducing job oriented Degree programmes rather continuing conventional 

type of academic programmes the Faculty of Management studies was established with three Departments 

in 1996.  These three departments offered three year special degree programs initially and subsequently the 

duration of the degree programs was extended to four years with introducing one special degree program in 

2004.  Further, nowadays the faculty offers six undergraduate degree programmes under 05 departments.  In 

addition, the Faculty offers a two year Master of Business Administration Degree with the intention of 

fulfilling the higher education requirements of prospective persons in public and private sector in Sri Lanka. 

As well as, a three year external degree programme also introduced by the Faculty in year 2013.    

 

The mission of the Faculty of Management Studies is to provide quality education in Management Studies 

and leadership with practical skills and to conduct research giving due consideration to the changing 

environment.   

 

B. Achievement 

 

 Established two new departments in order to offering two new degree programmes from the 

academic year 2017/2018 onwards as follows. 

 Dept. of Marketing Management - B.Sc. (Marketing Management) Hon0rs Degree 

 Dept. of Human Resource Management - B.Sc. (Human Resource Management) Honors 

Degree  

 Conducted the 2nd National Symposium on Management in the year 2018. 

 Issued two volumes of the Faculty journal "Journal of Management Matters" in the year 2018.  

 Four senior academics successfully completed their PhD in year 2018   

 Degree programs of the faculties were reviewed and earned 'B' Grade.   

 

C. Failure & Justification 

  

 Stage-II building yet to be completed. 

 Acquisition of land for Business school yet to be completed. 

 

D. Future Plan  

 

 Faculty of Management Studies is planned to conduct the next curriculum revision in year 2019.   

 In addition, the Dept. of Tourism and Hospitality Management has the following future plans. 

 To publish a Department Journal 'Ceylon Journal of Tourism Management'  

 To expand the model kitchen and the restaurant of the Department.   

 To sign a MoU. 

 The Dept. of Business Management also with a plan to sign a MoU with the Faculty of 

Management Studies, Rajarata University of Sri Lanka and Sampath Bank Plc.  
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 Initiate stage-II building and acquisition of land for Business school. 

 Initiate of new lecture complex for faculty. 

 Exploring the possibilities to sign MoUs with foreign universities. 

 Increase the duration of in-plant training period. 

 Initiate the periodic curriculum Revision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social and Ethnic Harmony 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Voyage with dream casters 
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21. FACULTY OF MEDICINE & ALLIED SCIENCES 
 

 

 

A. Introduction  

 

A new medical faculty was established on 08th September 2008 as per the gazette no 1,518/15 dated 

09th October 2007. There are 1043 doctors working in Sir Lanka and abroad, who have passed out from 

Rajarata Medical Faculty. FMAS enrolled 09 foreign students in the Faculty of Medicine & Allied Sciences. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Within the year 2018 two Senior Lecturers were recruited. 

 Dr. TKP Kaluarachchi, Senior Lecturer – Gr. I (Temporary Basis), Dept. of Pharmacology. 

 Dr. AMAHMS Senanayake, Senior Lecturer – Gr. II, Dept. of Medicine. 

 Dr. KGAD Weerakoon completed PhD degree in 2018. (Senior Lecturer, Dept. of Parasitology) 

 Dr. YGSW Jayarathne has been Board citified as a Specialist in Medical Education. (Senior Lecturer, 

Medical Education Unit) 

 Dr. JAAS Jayaweera has been successful completed the MD in Medical Microbiology. (Lecturer, 

Dept. of Pathology) 

 Dr. GHI Darshika has been successful completed the MD in Peadiatrics.     (Lecturer – Probationary, 

Dept. of Peadiatrics) 

 Dr. GGGT Amarakoon has been successful completed the MD in Peadiatrics.     (Lecturer – 

Probationary, Dept. of Peadiatrics) 

 Dr. AB Jayathilake has been successful completed the MD in Surgery.     (Lecturer – Probationary, 

Dept. of Surgery) 

 Within the year 2018 the following non - academic staffs were recruited. 

 Ms.A.R.T.K. Nawarathne – Management Assistant 

 Mr. H.C.S. De Silva – Management Assistant (Book Keeper) 

 Mrs. H.M.J.B. Dassanayake – Library Attendant 

 Mr. A.S. Gamage – Works Aid 

 Mr. J.M.C.P. Ranathunga – Works Aid 

 Mr. S. Piyadasa - Labourer 

 First Undergraduate Research Symposium of FMAS was held on 10th May 2018. 

 Established Department of Family Medicine. 

 Completed the curriculum revision.  

 Landscaping entire faculty premises. 

 Providing RO water for all students in the hostels, Professorial unit and the faculty.  

 Completed the boundary wall. 

 Computerized the library books. 

 Old building has been repaired. 

 Tinted the student study area, Wijayabahu hostel, physiology & hematology lab and dept. of 

paediatrics. 
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C. Failure & Justification 

 

Advertised to recruit qualified academic staff members within the year to fill the vacancies, but unable to 

recruit academic staff members due to situated in remote area insufficient facilities. 

 

Unable to commence the construction works of pre-clinical building year 2018. 

 

D. Future Plan 

 

 Rewiring of electrical internal line. 

 Implement of green campus concept. 

 Repairing of library, administration building and non-academic quarters. 

 Install the CCTV camera. (Saliyapura faculty premises & Professorial unit) 

 Establish the English Language Teaching Unit (ELTU) at the faculty. 

 Monkey safety grill for para-clinical building. 

 Air condition to lecture hall and library. 

 Vehicle park for the faculty staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

First Undergraduate Research Symposium - 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inauguration - 2018 (2016/2017 Batch) 
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            22. FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE AND HUMANITIES 

 

A. Introduction  

 

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities was established with the inception of the university in 1995.At 

present, the faculty comprises a student population of around 1300.The current intake is 500 students and the 

faculty wishes to increase its student strength to around 1700. The faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities 

comprises 6 departments. The faculty offers a BA (general) and BA (special) degree programs. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Publication of “පුරාවේද (Volume III)” The Journal of Archeology and Heritage Studies 2018  

 Launching of  

uOH hdkaTh ksïkfha mqrdúoHdj 
fy< yeoshdfõ ìysfodr ñyska;,dj 

 Conducting the “Lighting the discovery” - 3rd Research Undergraduate Symposium on Archeology 

2018 

 Pioneered in organizing the 4th International Research Symposium (ISIBES 2018) under the theme of 

“Caring Nature- Creating Wealth” this was a partnership action of the University with UNDP. The 

symposium was accompanied by an interuniversity quiz competition among national universities. 

 Introduced Diploma in Environmental Management program and successfully completed its first 

batch.  

 Initiated a waste management program for the university in collaboration with the Central 

Environmental Authority with the aim of reducing waste and the associated carbon emissions.  

 National Research Symposium on Historical Studies (NRSHS) 2018 

 Photography exhibition on “Youth for Love and Life” in collaboration with Centre for Peace Building 

and Reconciliation 

 Conducted Research activities of  Exploration of Deduru Oya basins, Excavation & Exploration of 

Mannaram Yoda Wewa basin, Excavation of Andara Wewa, Two weeks exploration program at 

Ritigala and Two weeks expedition at Kantharodai,Jaffna 

 

C. Failures and justification  

 

 BA (honors) in Environmental Management received a “D” grade from the program evaluation 

conducted by the QAAC of UGC. It is needed to learn from the program evaluation report in order to 

improve the status of the degree program.  

 Insufficient number of cadre both of academic and non-academic   

 Lack of physical and human resource facilities   to cater the new intake with additional 250 students. 

 The proposed inter faculty English Speech competition and the writing competitions had to be 

postponed due to non-academic strike and the closure of the university due to scarcity of water.   

 Lack of Internet and electricity facilities   
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D. Future Plan 

  

 Curriculum revision and re-design of the BA General and BA Hons degree to address program review 

of the faculty. 

 Improve the standard of the program review of the faculty. 

 Establishment of Research Archaeological Museum. 

 Excavation at Kantharodai 

 Initiation of faculty building-phase II. 

 Introduce postgraduate degrees. 

 Introducing new external degree programs. 

 Arrangements to hold the faculty speech competition and the writing competition 

 Enhance the Corporate Social Responsibilities. 

 Purchasing a Generator (for electric Generator) 

 Establishing Internet facilities and networking facilities. 

 Establishing the Department of Economics. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PGD Inauguration - 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workshop regarding tank cascade system   
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23. FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY 

 
A. Introduction  

 

The Faculty of Technology was officially gazetted on the 14th of September 2017 as the 6th Faculty of the 

Rajarata University of Sri Lanka (RUSL). The initiative to launch the Faculty of Technology came from 

within the Faculty of Applied Sciences (FAS) of RUSL in January of 2015, with the intention of expanding 

the overall current academic structure of the institution. Through this initiative, it was hoped that the 

inadequately elaborated academic structure be improved as compared with other Sri Lankan universities of 

similar size and scope. 

 

The Faculty of Technology comprises 5 Departments, each leading to their respective degree programmes: 

1- Bio Process Technology (BPT), 2- Electrical & Electronic Technology (EET), 3- Food Technology (FT), 

4- Information & Communication Technology (ICT), 5- Materials Technology (MT). All degree 

programmes follow the SLQF 6 format spanning a study period of 4 years. Students who have sat for their 

G.C.A. A/Ls under the technology stream are selected for these degree programmes and are initially 

grouped into Bio systems Technology, Engineering Technology and Information & Communication 

Technology. The Bio systems Technology and Engineering Technology students are then branched out into 

Bio Process and Food, and Electrical & Electronic and Materials Technology, respectively, during their 

second year of study, taking into account their preference, academic performance as well as the availability 

of resources and market demand. 

 

Compared with existing courses in the country, the Technology degree programmes are more vocational, 

heavily focusing on nurturing hands-on skills. Industry tie-ups and collaborations were incorporated from 

the very beginning itself into the curricula. This is deemed an important aspect given that students from all 

degree programmes have to go for an industrial placement and a semester-long research project during their 

final few semesters of study. 

 

In addition to the funding received from the University Grants Commission (UGC), the Faculty also 

receives financial support from the Asian Development Bank (ADB) for infrastructure and human resource 

development. The Faculty has taken in three batches of G.C.E. A/L Technology stream students to date, 

with the second year students having already completed their second semester.  Currently, there are 14 

permanent staff members and 20 temporary staff members involved in teaching. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Phase - I building has been completed and handed over to the faculty. All the departments have 

received the spaces for some of their labs (biology, electronics, chemistry and computer) and staff 

rooms in the newly completed Phase I building.  

 Laboratories are being furnished under the supervision of the Faculty of Technology staff and soon 

be ready to accommodate students for lab classes once finished.  

 Bidding and contractor selection has been completed for the construction of the Phase - II building. 

Site preparation earth works have already been started.  

  Project based learning was implemented to the second year students in the Faculty. 
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 A group of students from ICT Department participated and won the first place in Haxmas 2k18 

competition. Following workshops were conducted for ICT students collaborating with the Faculty 

of Applied Sciences and prominent IT industries of Sri Lanka. 

 Software Quality Assurance workshop 

 On Your Mark 2018   

 Testing equipment and materials were received for the labs of the Materials Department.  

 A workshop was organized jointly by the Faculty of Technology and the Faculty of Applied 

Sciences for the A/L students.  

 

C. Failure and Justification 

 

 Several failures occurred during the year due to the lack of enough academic and nonacademic staff 

members. These include  

● delays in regular duties  

● poor resource management  

● unavailability of consumables in labs for practical on time 

● academic staff members spend majority of their time on administrative and nonacademic duties 

instead of academic duties 

 Being a newly established faculty the present staff is struggling to manage the workload. In addition 

to the inadequate staff the faculty is also facing severe shortage of space for laboratories and office 

spaces. It also caused several failures, such as 

● postponement of  lab classes to next year due to lack of lab spaces 

● lack of proper work space for lecturers 

● Last minute cancellation of lectures due to lecture hall scheduling clashes with other faculties.  

● Too much workload for the staff members because only two members are there in the department 

and requested cadre was not approved 

● Since we were using the laboratory facilities from the Faculty of Applied Sciences, we faced a 

problem of conducting practical sessions in the proper schedule. However we covered the 

required practical sessions at the end by adopting flexible time schedules and accommodating free 

hours in laboratories. Lab requirement of Materials Department was temporarily solved with the 

help of the Faculty of Agriculture 

● Delays in purchasing required equipment- The quoted companies didn’t  deliver the particular 

equipment at the stated budget, hence the same equipment had re-sent to purchase in year of 2019 

 

D Future Plan 

 

 Infra-Structure Development 
 

● Constructing buildings, purchasing equipment, chemicals, consumables are planned to initiate 

for the labs: Chemistry lab , Microbiology Research lab, Plant tissue culture lab, molecular 

biology lab and microbiology and biotechnology lab, Immunology lab, proteomics lab, agri-

tech lab and plant house, Food Technology lab, Robotics and Automation lab, Power Electric 

Lab Control Systems with the assistance of the ADB financial support 

● We hope to setup another Electrical Technology lab in the phase I building for teaching and 

research purposes. 
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● Biology laboratory in Phase – I building is planned to start functioning once finishing the 

furnishing and placing equipment which have been already purchased by the department 

 Curriculum Development 
 

● Improving and initiating liaisons with the industry via a liaison cell 

● Launch of business incubators 

● Participation in relevant accreditation schemes  

 Human Resource Development 
 

● Recruitment of Faculty members who have specialized in areas which are relevant to the 

Technology degree programmes 

● MoUs with Michigan University (USA) and Chungnam University (Korea) for the purpose of 

staff development as well as student exchange programmes 

● A symposium on smart agriculture: logic and new concepts will be conducted jointly with 

Asian Development Bank, Michigan state university, USA and Chungnam National 

University, Korea in early 2019 to give the knowledge and experience of hands on experience 

to students and staff 

● A workshop on “Job Opportunities in Industry” will be held to improve students credentials 

when entering the job market 

● Short term training programs will be organized for both academic and non-academic staff 

members to improve their capabilities and to provide opportunities 

● A stakeholders meeting will be organized to keep the curriculum and the degree program up 

to date with the latest trends in the field. An industrial consultative committee will be formed 

with the help of leaders in the industry to fine-tune the requirements of the program.  

● A workshop will be organized on curriculum development and laboratory design focusing on 

Electrical and Electronic technology with the help of foreign and local consultants.  

● Department plans to conduct a workshop to improve students’ credentials through workshop 

on “Industrial Nanotechnology for Food and Agriculture sectors” in when entering to job 

market. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Opening Ceremony 'Stage 1' Building 
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ACADEMIC SUPPORT DIVISIONS & 

UNITS 
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24. LIBRARY SYSTEM  

 

A. Introduction 

 

The library system of Rajarata University was started on 2nd September 1996. The first librarian of 

Rajarata University Library was Prof. Piyadasa Ranasighe (1996-1998), followed by Mr. Kapila Jayalal 

Sirisena and Mr. Gamini De Silva (1999-2007). Mrs. Hema Wijethunga (2007-2009) and Mrs. A.S 

Siriwardana is the present Librarian of the University (from August 2017 on Sabbatical Leave). Since 

August 2017 Dr. S.K.Illangarathne, Senior Assistant Librarian is covering up the duties of the 

librarianship. 

 

It consists with Main Library and four faculty libraries in different locations. The Main Library, Faculty 

of Applied Sciences & Faculty of Technology libraries are placed within the Mihintale premises and serve 

to the Faculty of Social Sciences & Humanities, Faculty of Management studies, Faculty of Applied 

Sciences & Faculty of Technology consecutively. The Library sited in Puliyankulama serves to the 

Faculty of Agriculture and the Library located in Saliyapura serves to the Faculty of Medicine and Allied 

Sciences. The clinical Library situated in the Teaching Hospital in Anuradhapura. 

 

Materials that can be found in the Main Library consist of textbooks, journals, magazines, newspapers, 

government documents, special collections, reference materials, past project reports, dissertation, past 

questions papers and e-resources. All these are materials that have been acquired based on the subject 

curriculum. The library resources are available in both print and electronic formats. Except their major 

services the Library provide the facility of online journal databases which can be assess full text journal 

titles in relevant disciplines through the CONSAL. The book collection comprises of text books in various 

subjects disciplines which are mainly taught in the all faculties of the Rajarata University. 

 

i. Collection of Printed Materials as at 31-12-2018 

 

Main 

Library  

Applied Science 

Library  

Agriculture 

Library 

Medicine and Allied 

Sciences Library 

Technology 

Library 

Total 

82074 13305 14568 10207 1357 121511 

 

ii. Membership of the Library as at 31-12-2018 

 

 Main 

Library 

Applied 

Sciences 

Library 

Agriculture 

Library 

Medicine and 

Allied Sciences 

Library 

Technology 

Library 

Total 

Undergraduates 5176 1176 809 1296 491 8457 

Academic staff 379 101 76 43 03 599 

Temporary 

Academic Staff 

23 34 21 01 07 79 

Non Academic Staff 389 22 54 52 03 517 
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iii. Facilities available in the Library 

 

 Automated library facility through KOHA (Integrated Library System) and the library catalogues can 

be seen through OPAC (Online Public Access Catalogues). 

 Available e –Resources and Databases through CONSAL (Consortium of Academic Libraries of Sri 

Lanka) sponsored by the University Grants Commission, Sri Lanka. (Emerald/Taylor and 

Francis/Oxford University Press/ HINARI/ARDI/OARE/GOALI/AGORA) 

 Online research archive: more than 1900 of abstract and full text of academics in the university 

functioned with Dspace archival management system. 

 Online past question paper service, Audio visual resource center and free WIFI-Zone 

 SDI/CAS Service & Research Support Service 

 Private photocopy facility and  a News clipping Service 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Six (06) Library Orientation Programs were conducted for students in Faculty of Management 

Studies, Agriculture, Medicine, Social Sciences and Humanities, Applied Sciences and Technology. 

 Two (02) training programs were conducted for public Librarians of North Central Province dated on 

26/04/2018 and 30/08/2018. 

 Provided the Kotte Period stole to exhibition conducted by the Nochchiyagama Public Library for 

Literacy Month. 

  English Language Speaking Training for Library Information Assistants and Library Attendants were 

conducted by the library. 

 Internship trainings for Library and Information Science graduates. 

 Senior Assistant Librarians participated to e-Government, cyber security and Social Media Training 

program in National Library 

 Senior Assistant Librarians participated to Abstract and Article Reviewing workshop and Mirror of 

921 Circulars workshop in ULA. 

 Library staff members attended to Workshop on Right Attitude for better Performance in ULA. 

 The Library conducted URKUND awareness program for All Academics in the University. 

 

C. Failure and Justification 

 

 Lack of space for library users 

 Time allocation for library is not sufficient to undergraduates to continue their library activities. 
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D. Future Plans  

 

 Introduce a distance learning service that will allow users to create, personalize, collect and track 

instructions and can deliver important scholarly content to the user. 

 Plan to mount a digital display panel services for disseminating current content among students 

including new trends, new arrivals, content and latest updates.  

 Proposed to have RFID Technology/CCTV systems that enable a high security system to the 

collection. 

 Increasing the e-resources facilities. 

  Planning to convert the content to electronic resources that makes user friendly and most efficient 

library environment with green concept.  

 Increasing the infrastructure facilities. 

 Enhance the CSR activities. 

 Conducting in-house training program for library staff and others. 
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25. DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

 

A. Introduction  

 

The Department of Physical Education provides a wide range of sports and recreational programmes for the 

weal of student community of the University. The main objective of the Department of Physical Education is 

to promote and improve the students sporting abilities, provide opportunities to develop individual and team 

sports and familiarize to healthy active life style of the students of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

To reach the above objectives the Department organized and conducted following activities and 

programmes in 2018. 

 

The Colours Award Ceremony for the Colour winners of 2016 and 2017 was held in January 2018,  

 

Successfully It was organized successfully separates physical education programs for each faculty's fresh 

students allocating a specific day and such sessions were designed to give all fresh student some 

theoretical knowledge about the importance of physical education and sports. Also it organized some 

outdoor activities which acquired lots of interest from the participants. 

 

Open Championships for Table Tennis, Carom, Badminton and Chess were held in the month of May and 

June. There were over 200 students participated for championships. 

 

As the major sport event in the University the Inter faculty Sports tournament organized in May and June. 

First time 6 faculties participated including Faculty of Technology to the tournament. About 1250 

students participated to the tournament and we conducted 17 sports discipline and we included the 

Swimming and Karate to the Tournament in first time 

 

The Inter Faculty Fresher‘s Sports Tournament was conducted for each faculty‘s fresh students in the 

month of December and about 650 first year students participated for the tournament represented all 6 

faculties. It included 12 sports disciplines.  

 

Inter University Games were held successfully in several University premises and it is considered as the 

most important and valuable sport event to the University students.  About 550 sports men and women 

participated for the inter University games representing the Rajarata University .Also the Department of 

Physical Education of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka successfully organized the Inter University 

Hockey (Men & Women) and Swimming  (Men & Women) Championships at the Rajarata University of 

Sri Lanka. At the Inter University Tournament 2018 the following teams performed well.  

 

 Hockey Men Team- Champion    

 Volleyball Women Team –First Runner up 

 Elle Men Team –First Runner up 
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 Karate Men  

 Athletic Men 

 Road race 

 

The University teams were participated several friendly and Invitation matches with other University 

teams and some recognized club teams and our Elle, Hockey, Chess, Karate and Cricket teams performed 

well at the tournaments. University cricket team has played Anuradhapura District Division iii Cricket 

Tournament which was organized by Sri Lanka Cricket and our team won championship at the 

tournament. 
 

Sri Lanka Senior Novices Weightlifting Championship was organized by Sri Lanka Weightlifting 

Federation and one student was able to win a Silver medal under the Weight Category of 105kg. 
 

In the month of September University Cricket team participated INIFINI International Cricket 

Tournament in India 
  

World University Beach Volleyball Championship was held on July 2018 at Munich, Germany and one 

female student of the Rajarata University participated as a member of Sri Lanka Universities Beach 

Volleyball women team. 

 

C. Failure and Justification  

 

The construction of stage iii of the gymnasium not completed this year.  The consultant did not prepare 

the document in time 

 

The lighting system of indoor gymnasium is not completed satisfactory. 
 

D. Future Plans  

 

In 2019 we hope to include other two sports for our internal tournaments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University Swimming pool at the Inter University Tournament -2018 
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26. CAREER GUIDANCE UNIT 

 

A. Introduction 

 

The Career Guidance Unit of the University of Rajarata was established in 2005, through the initiative of 

the University Grants Commission (UGC), Sri Lanka. The unit functions directly under the Vice 

Chancellor. It is located on University main premises at Mihinthale as each faculty has the easy access. It 

is a one-story building with 100 people capacity. The unit is well functioned under the director, career 

guidance counselors and supported coordinators from each faculty. 

 

B. Achievements 

 

 Career Guidance Unit of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka has organized “Entrepreneurship Grant 

Awarding Ceremony” 

 Successfully conducted a Workshop for Entrepreneurship Skills Development Program 

 Conducted a Program on “Entrepreneurship Development - Handy Craft”  

 Conducted a Leadership Development Program for the Faculty of Social Sciences  

 Conducted a Two-day leadership development training for the Faculty of Agriculture 

 Conducted Hostel programs “Skills for Life and Skills for Marriage Life” 

 Conducted a Speech crafter program for the Students of Faculty of Social Sciences and 

Humanities 

 Conducted a Speech crafter program for the Students of Faculty of Agriculture 

 Conducted a Business Plan Preparation workshop with Collaboration of NEDA (National 

Enterprise Development Authority) 

 Career Guidance Unit successfully completed Career Guidance Unit successfully completed  

Teaching Career Development Course Module 

 

C. Future Plans 

  

Item 

No. 
Name of the program Program description Dates 

01 Hostel program to create an awareness on personal 

grooming and dress cord 

February, 

2019 

02 The program on “Medical Camp” to emphasize healthier life March, 

2019 

 

03 

Starting a certificate course in 

Professional Development 

Finalizing the syllabus and bylaws - 

One-year program 

March, 

2019 
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04 Human Resource - Occupational outlook to create awareness on world of work 

10 

May, 2019 

05 Career Week Conducting career fair, career guidance, 

meeting industry experts throughout the 

week 

July, 2019 

06 “Oba Asirimath” Personality development 

program 

- improving personality and life 

and career goal setting 

September, 

2019 

 

07 

 

Hostel program - “Skills for life” 

 

empower students with skills - 20 

workshops 

 

throughout 

the year 

08 Hostel program - “Skills for marriage 

life” 

Work-life balance - 10 workshops throughout 

the year 

09 Drama therapy workshops To improve presentation skills and 

stress release - 05 

throughout 

the year 

 

10 

“Leader in You” - OBT  for four faculties - to improve 

leadership skills of undergraduates - 04 

throughout 

the year 

 

11 

 

photographic workshops 

to improve skills of photography and 

make an interest on photography career 

- 05 

throughout 

the year 

12 Entrepreneurship development programs to improve entrepreneurship skills - 02 throughout 

the year 

13 NEDA entrepreneurship development 

programs 

business plan preparation - 04 throughout 

the year 

14 NEDA business plan evaluation to select potential business plan - 04 throughout 

the year 

15 Gavel club to improve communication and 

leadership skills - 2nd and 4th 

Wednesday in every month 

throughout 

the year 

16 Industry exposure visits -John Keels, Ruhunu Foods, Lucky 

yoghurt, SANASA, Softlogic, Alfa 

Apperals - 06 

throughout 

the year 

17 Interviewing, CV and Resume writing 

skills  

to improve interviewing skills - 04 for 

final year students 

throughout 

the year 

18 Table manners and Etiquette to improve business etiquette - 10 throughout 

the year 

19 “Kadda” communication skills 

development workshop 

to improve communication skills - throughout 

the year 

20 Speech crafter program to improve public speaking skills - 04 throughout 

the year 

21 Creating a CV Pool Collecting final year students’ CVs and 

distribute them in the cooperate sector 

throughout 

the year 

22 Installing outdoor LED screen to aware CGU programs and Job 

vacancies 

May, 2019 
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27. CENTRE FOR DISTANCE AND CONTINUING EDUCATION 

 

A. Introduction 

 

The Centre for Distance and Continuing Education (CDCE) of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka is the 

independent administrative body established to coordinate activities of the external academic programs.  

The CDCE was established as per the UGC Circular No. 932 with the approval of the Council of the 

University on 24th October 2011 (155th Council Meeting).  Since then, the CDCE was functioned at the 

Faculty of Applied Sciences until 31st March 2014.  The CDCE was shifted to the main administrative 

building with effect from 1st April 2014 

 

Existing programs and Student Enrolment 

 

SN Programs 
No of Students 

Enrolled in 2018 

No of Students 

Passed out in 2018 

01 B.Sc. (General) Degree Programme               39              7 

02 Bachelor of Business Administration (General)             798           123 

03 Diploma Course in English             412  

04 Advance Certificate Course in English 252 - 

05 Diploma Course in Tamil Language 101  

06 Certificate Course in Tamil Language 73  

07 Diploma Course in ICT  94  

08 Certificate Course in ICT 134 - 

09 Certificate Course in Complementary and Alternative 

Medicine 

  49 - 

10 Diploma in Environmental Management - - 

11 Postgraduate Diploma in Child Protection - - 

 Total  1903 130 

 

B. Achievements 

 

Procurement of Goods 

 

The CDCE procures the materials required for the study programmes according to their request utilizing 

the generated income of the programme that is stated in the budget approved by the Finance Committee of 

the University. 
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1. CDCE 

 

S/N Item Description Qty. Expenditure  (Rs.) 

1 UPS 02 7,800.00 

2 Student Hand Books 1500 237,000.00 

3 Letter Heads for CDCE 1000 19,500.00 

4 Franking Machine Ribbon Rolls 12 28,980.00 

5 Duplicator Inks 05 27,312.50 

6 Duplicator Masters 03 31,050.00 

 

2. English Langue Teaching Unit 

 

S/N Item Description Qty Allocation (Rs.) 

1 Paying Voucher Books 100 32,200.00 

2 Printing Certificates 1500 65,500.00 

3 Conference Tables  02 55,000.00 

4 Computer Operator Chairs 17 111,307.34 

5 Duplicator Inks 30 164,799.14 

6 Duplicator Masters 13 137,909.38 

7 Portable DVD Writer 01 5,800.00 

8 Laptop Computers 04 358,000.00 

9 Multimedia projectors with Mounting Facility 02 195,000.00 

10 Amplifier 01 100,912.50 

11 Portable sound  system with Amplifier 01 54,912.50 

12 Wireless receiver with clip on mikes 03 109,537.50 

 

3. BBA Program 

 

S/N Item Description  Qty. Allocation (Rs.) 

1 Self Study Modules  

(Year 2 Semester 1 & Year 3 Semester 1) 

3900 663,705.00 

2 Answer Sheets 200,000 391,000.00 

3 Self Study Modules (Year 3 Semester 2) 1500 342,412.50 

4 Self Study Modules (Year 2 Semester 2)  1800 362,898.00 

5 Self Study Modules (Year 1 Semester 2) 3750 780,131.25 

6 Steel Almirahs 06 121,992.00 

7 Student Record Books 2000 25,800.00 
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4. ICT 

 

S/N Item Description Qty Allocation (Rs.) 

1 Printing Certificates 300 15,900.00 

2 Printed  File Bags 250 31,500.00 

 

C. Failure and Justification  

 

 Lack of required physical and human resources for proper functioning of the CDCE. CDCE does 

not have minimum administrative, financial, secretarial and technical staff on the basis of the 

cadre determined by the UGC Circular 932. 

 Barriers to function as a an independent, effective and productive center  

 Issues pertaining to outside study centers  

 Issues pertaining to effective coordination among the CDCE, BOS  and programme coordinators.  

 

D. Future Plans 

 

 Construction of a new building for the CDCE 

 Expansion of the CDCE as an fully fledged administrative entity  

 To carry out the curriculum revision for BBA program 

 Upgrade the facilities in lecture halls and outside study centers  

 To carry out Self Evaluation Report (SER) of the study programs. 

 To introduce the data base management system and create a separate website for the CDCE 

 Formalize the Quality Assurance unit of the CDCE and closely work with the University QA unit 

to ensure the quality of the Degree Programmes and extension courses manage by the CDCE. 

 Strengthening   the coordination among CDCE, BoS and Programme coordinators.  
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28. ACTIVITIES OF STAFF DEVELOPMENT CENTRE 

 

A. Introduction 

 

The Staff Development Centre (SDC) at the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was established in the year 

2015. The vision of the centre is “To be a hub of excellence in professional development”. SDC is in the 

mission of providing continuous, need based learning and professional development opportunities for all 

categories of staff within RUSL. SDC, RUSL is managed by a university appointed management 

committee, including senior academics representing all faculties and chaired by the Vice Chancellor.  
 

In the year 2018, the Certificate in Teaching in Higher Education (CTHE) was successfully completed 

with 24 participants. New recruits from all faculties; namely  Medical and Allied Health Sciences, 

Applied Sciences, Social Sciences and Humanities Agriculture, Management Studies. Also, several other 

workshops also successfully completed for both academics and non-academics (See the table below) .    
 

The biggest constraint for the smooth operation of SDC was the inadequacy of permanent supportive staff 

as it is operating with a single semi-skilled hired labourer. The problem is still prevailing as the allocated 

carder positions are not filled yet. Further, SDC concentrated in completing Certificate in Teaching in 

Higher Education programme for academic staff, who were waiting for years to complete. With that 

emphasis, the programme was accelerated with all available schedules, despite showing interest on other 

programmes.    
 

The SDC, RUSL has also proposed organize several workshops for academics and non-academics in the 

year 2019. One groups of CTHE has also planned to start and complete within the year 2019, in addition 

with some other requested workshops for non-academic as well. The action plan of SDC has approved by 

the by the university administration for year 2019, and SDC is targeting at least a 80% success.  
 

Workshops Details Summary – 2018 

No Workshop Name Date Staff Category 
Number of 

participants 
Cost 

01 
Communication Course in 

English for Library Staff 

20.07.2018,13.07.2018  

06.07.2018,29.06.2018 

22.06.2018 

Non Academic 

Staff of the 

library 

13 50,625.00 

02 
Mixed Methods in Health 

Research 
18.08.2018 Academic Staff 35 

No separate 

budget 

03 

Endeavour Awards for Sri 

Lanka by Australian 

government 

19.08.2018 Academic Staff 20 
No separate 

budget 

04 Procurement Procedures 29.10.2018 
Non Academic 

Staff 
31 9,625.00 

05 Inventory Management 30.10.2018 
Non Academic 

Staff 
35 9,505.00 

06 

Certificate of Teaching in 

Higher Education Program 

( CTHE ) 

20.09.2018 - 

28.12.2018 
Academic staff 26 

650,000.00 
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29. COMPUTER CENTER 

A. Introduction 

 

The Computer Centre of Rajarata University of Sri Lanka was established along with the establishing of 

the university in 1996, in the view of enhancing the ICT skills of undergraduates of the university. The 

center was administered directly by the vice chancellor and its functions were supervised by the head of 

the center appointed by the vice chancellor. The computer center initially focused on conducting basic 

computer awareness programs for undergraduates of faculty of management studies and faculty of social 

sciences & humanities. As the university expanded, the computer center became the prime ICT service 

provider for the university. Since the initial scope of the center had been expanded, and to reduce the 

administrative burden, starting from 2011, the council of the university appointed a director to look after 

academic and administrative matters. The director is a one of academic members with sound knowledge 

in ICT. The term of the director is three years.  

 

The Center opens from 8.00 a.m. to 6.00 p.m. during week days and from 8.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m. on 

Saturdays. Apart from the normal opening hours, on special requests, with the approval of the vice 

chancellor, center opens till 8.00 p.m. during study leave and examination periods. 

 

The Computer Centre is headed by the director under the supervision of the Vice Chancellor. The staff of 

the CC consists of an instructor in computer technology, a programmer cum system analyst, an assistant 

network manager, a technical officer, a lab attendant and a laborer.  
 

Resources and Services  

Computer Laboratories  

The CC maintains an always updated set of physical resources. There two main computer laboratories each 

quipped 100 modern personnel computers. One of the laboratories is reserved for conducting lectures and 

demonstration sessions related to ICT subjects. One laboratory is available for students to access at any time 

especially for internet accessing and free practicing.  
 

Video Conference Unit 

A Dedicated Video Conference system that  have all required components packaged into a single set of 

equipment is installed at the Computer center so that any academic or administrative officer can make use 

of it to remotely participate in official events provided that the other party provides facilities to connect  

remotely. 
 

Computer Maintenance, Assembling, and Repairing Unit (CMAU) 

The CMAU of the University runs under the supervision of the Director/Computer Centre. Repairs of IT 

equipment such as PCs, UPSs, printers, etc., are undertaken by the CMAU. Software installation and 

troubleshooting services are also provided by the unit. Two technical officers have been assigned on 

temporary basis to carry out duties of the CMAU and they are working after normal duty hours, holidays 

and weekends. 

 

Internet and Intranet Services 

LEARN is the main ISP of the University and the subscribed internet bandwidth of the university (at the 

Mihintale premises) is 150Mbps and Local Link bandwidth is 200Mbps. A high speed fiber optics  
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backbone has been laid to cover the most of buildings at Mihintale promises. Inside the buildings, UTP 

cables have been laid and connected them to the main backbone via LANs. Except to newly constructed 

buildings and to few lecture halls, the CC has provide internet and intranet connectivity all academics and 

administrative offices.  
 

B. Achievements in the year 2018 
 

 Computer center was able to facilitate to all the related academic works of the faculties situated 

Mihintale premises in the year. Apart from the providing infrastructure facilities, the exiting computer 

laboratories were upgraded by replacing existing 50 computers with new machines in order to provide 

an efficient service. Further two new multimedia projectors were installed in the centre.  

 Computer center successfully conducted two programs of Certificate in ICT and one program of 

Diploma in ICT. 

 Local area networks installed in ICT laboratory in Faculty of Applied Sciences.  

 Wi-Fi facilities were extended to cover students' canteen area. 

 CMAU unit performed its duties regularly 

 Wi-Fi Facility for New Department Building – Faculty of Agriculture 

 Wi-Fi connectivity through University network for new faculty building – Faculty of  Management 

Studies 

 Wi-Fi connectivity through University network for new faculty building – Faculty of Social Sciences 

 Internet facility for the resource center of department of Tourism and Hospitality Management – 

Faculty of Management Studies 

 Internet facility to computer laboratory of English Language Teaching Department – Faculty of 

Social Science and Humanities 

 Provide Internet facility to Carrier Guidance Unit through university network 

 

C. Future Plans 
 

 Extend Wi-Fi facilities to cover the students' hostel area. 

 Installing LAN's to cover the new buildings of Faculty of Agriculture, Faculty of  Management, 

 Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities, Faculty of Technology. 

 Expand the Wi-Fi coverage in students' hostels, Faculty of Agriculture, Faculty of Applied 

 Sciences, Faculty of Management, Faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities, and Faculty of 

 Technology. 

 Upgrading university servers. 

 Upgrading existing two laboratories by replacing selected outdated computers with new 

 computers. 

 Preparing a proposal and getting approval for a new IT building 
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For the year ended 31st December                                  

in Rs.
Note 2018 2017

Revenue

Government grant - recurrent 1,435,668,000       1,200,175,000.00   

Student bursary 25,436,600            47,561,000.00        

Grant for mahapola -UGC component 46,964,050            37,031,750.00        

Grant for mahapola -Trust fund component 48,880,950            51,629,400.00        

Amortization of government grants 455,457,230          401,821,275.00      

2,012,406,830.00  1,738,218,425.00   

Other Revenue

Rehabilitation grant for maintenance 2,414,945              3,770,580.00          

Interest from investment 18,960,132            26,764,943.00        

Interest from staff loan 1,303,603              1,434,463.00          

Rental  from properties 1,821,730              2,625,069.00          

Sale of fixed assets 812,127                 2,782,705.00          

Miscellaneous income 2,675,065              2,991,434.00          

Registration fees (Undergraduate) 640,775                 2,030,630.00          

Supplier Registration Fee 1,152,550              290,916.00             

Convocation fee 2,776,225              2,389,700.00          

Examination fees (Undergraduate) 143,680                 200,965.00             

Tender Fees 1,616,945              990,850.00             

Fines Collection 414,379                 657,129.00             

Services rendered to outsiders 606,920                 190,047.00             

Student Hostel Fees 2,372,509              3,503,053.00          

Certificate Fees 227,950                 195,580.00             

Laboratary Charges 93,500                   636,000.00             

Liqudated damages Charges 2,806,088              6,835,710.00          

Swimming Pool Membership Charges 48,000                   1,000.00                 

solar Power Plant Income 222,171                 -                         

Income from Extension Courses 13,614,991            9,880,721.00          

54,724,285.00       68,171,495.00        

2,067,131,115.00  1,806,389,919.00   

Expenses

Personal emoluments 1,175,963,503.00  950,263,040.00      

T ravelling 5,537,507.00         9,087,807.00          

Supplies 58,015,062.00       54,448,581.00        

Maintenance 20,686,027.00       27,175,941.00  

Contractual  services 223,428,364.00     256,146,360.00      

Financial assistance to student 121,686,450.00     136,222,150.00      

Depreciation 453,210,941.00     393,915,972.00      

Other expenses 66,004,849.00       61,780,162.00        

2,124,532,703.00  1,889,040,013.00   

Net Surplus/(Deficit)  for the year (57,401,588.00)      (82,650,093.00)      

Cost per student

With depreciation 324,753.00            288,756.00             

Without depreciation 255,476.00            266,463.00             

Government recurrent grant per student 219,454.00            218,209.00             

RAJARATA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

Statement of Financial Performance

28
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As at  31st December                                                                                                                       

in Rs.
2018 2017

Cash Flow from operating activities

Surplus/Deficit from ordinary Activities (57,401,588.00)          (82,650,093.00)              

Non Cash movements/Adjustments

Adjustments for lease interest 174,055.00                524,779.00                    

Depreciation 453,210,940.00         393,915,972.00             

Provision for gratuity 11,221,626.00           13,299,206.00               

General reserve and other adjustment (2,950,455.00)            347,800,246.00             

Profit  on sale of fixed assets -                             (1,754,750.00)                

Amotization of capital grants (455,457,230.00)        (405,591,855.00)            

Operating Surplus/(Dificit) before working capital changes (51,202,652.00)          265,543,505.00             

Working Capital Changes

(Increase)/Decrease  inventories (1,911,490.00)            (3,516,418.00)                

(Increase)/Decrease   receivables 507,806.00                1,811,015.00                 

(Increase)/Decrease  pre payments 189,620.00                1,059,796.00                 

(Increase)/Decrease   in retention & creditors (66,888,942.00)          18,736,552.00               

(Increase)/Decrease in staff Advance (1,584,167.00)            -                                 

   Monies due from other Unversities/Institutions (9,747,929.00)            36,751,510.00               

Cash generated from Operating Activities

Net Cash flows from O perating activities after working capital changes (130,637,754.00)        320,385,960.00             

Gratuity Payment (3,170,159.00)            (3,071,550.00)                

Net Cash flows from O perating activities (133,807,913.00)        317,314,410.00             

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property Plant and Equipments (190,207,555.00)        (1,070,521,983.00)         

Payments for WIP (305,070,708.00)        (197,624,886.00)            

Payments of Mobilization Advance 31,257,288.00           (94,142,445.00)              

Payments of Finance Lease on Vehicles (2,407,140.00)            (2,030,258.00)                

Cash from Staff Loans 2,949,823.00             2,808,505.00                 

Cash from Investment 57,598,590.00           164,534,119.00             

sales proceeds from Fixed Assets -                             1,754,750.00                 

Investments on FDs (81,194,246.00)          (87,226,738.00)              

Net Cash Flow  from investing Advities (487,073,948.00)        (1,282,448,936.00)         

Cash Flow from Financing Activies

Capital Grants Received 496,000,000.00         839,903,034.00             

Rehabilitation Grants 79,000,000.00           71,600,000.00               

Increase in Research and Other Funds 800,776.00                33,316,246.00               

Other internal income 55,736,313.00           

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 631,537,089.00         944,819,280.00             

Net Increase in Cash & Cash equivalents 10,655,230.00           (20,315,245.00)              

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 91,611,917.00           111,927,162.00             

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 102,267,147.00         91,611,917.00               

Cash Flow Statement

RAJARATA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA
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01. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1.1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Rajarata University of Sri Lanka is a fully Government owned higher educational institute 

established under the Universities Act No 16 of 1978 and subsequent amendments thereto. 

Rajarata University of Sri Lanka currently operates with six faculties and situated in North 

Central Province, Anuradhapura district, in Sri Lanka.  

 

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 

The Financial Statements of the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka have been prepared on accrual 

basis and under the historical cost convention unless stated otherwise. The Financial Statements 

are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs), which is the University functional and presentation 

currency and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee value. 
 

The significant accounting policies are disclosed in note 1.3 and 1.4. 
 

The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Changes 

in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement together with the accounting policies and notes have been 

prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the requirement of the Universities Act 

No 16 of 1978 and subsequent amendments thereto.  
 
 

The net financial result of the ordinary course of business of the University for the year under 

review is shown in the Statement of Financial Performance. All assets and liabilities of the 

University are shown in the Statement of Financial Position. In addition, the Cash Flow Statement 

includes the cash flows of the University.  
 

1.3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

1.3.1 APPLICATION OF SLPSAS  
 

The University has followed the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) when 

preparing and presenting financial statements for the year 2018. In this contest, all SLPSAS 

mentioned in the Statutory Report have been followed unless stated otherwise. 

 

1.3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The University has adopted the Public Sector Accounting Standards when preparing and 

presenting the Financial Statements of the University unless stated otherwise. No significant 

changes in accounting policies have been taken place during the year under review. 

 

1.3.3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 

Preparation of the Financial Statements of the University requires the management to make 

Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions, which may affect the Income, Expenditure, Assets, 

Liabilities and disclosure of Contingent Liabilities, as at the end of the financial year. When 

applying the accounting policies the key assumptions made relating to the future estimates and 

other aspects are discussed below.  
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1.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 
 

1.4.1 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 
 

All foreign currency transactions recognised to functional currency at the rates of exchange rates 

prevailing at the time the transactions occurred. Monitory assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currency are translated to functional currency (Rupees) at equivalent exchange rates 

prevailing as at 31/12/2018. The balances of Residential Foreign Currency (RFC) account as at 

reporting date recognised into functional currency at the rates of the same date. The gain/loss 

recognized on foreign currency is shown separately in the note no 31 and net result credited to the 

respective fund account separately. 
 

1.4.2 TAX 
 

Income tax 

University is not liable to pay income tax on its income of the ordinary course of the business 

according to the prevailing tax regulations. However, the University has paid withholding tax 

periodically on interest income earned on time deposits which are made use of the unutilised 

earned funds, other projects and scholarship funds. These tax (Withholding tax) has paid by the 

banks directly to the Inland Revenue Department at the time interest on deposits were paid and 

the transaction were properly recorded in the ledger accounts and net effect charged to the 

Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

Payee tax 

University currently remits payee tax deducted from monthly salaries of the employees who are 

liable for payment of income tax which are not a part of the University expenditure. Hence, 

payment of payee tax is not accounted in the separate accounts of the University.  

 

1.4.3 PROPERTY ,PLANT  AND EQUIPMENT (PPE)  
 

LAND, BUILDINGS, MOTOR VEHICLES & OTHER CATEGORIES OF PPE 
 

 

The SLPSAS 07 requires an entity to review the residual value and the useful life of an asset at 

least at each annual reporting date and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 

(s) shall be accounted for as a change in Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards an 

accounting estimate in accordance with SLPSAS 3, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors.  
 

 
DEPRECIATION 

 
Depreciation is calculated by using straight-line method at following rates on the cost or 

revaluation value of all Property, Plant and Equipment, books and periodicals and cloaks. 
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Further details on depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment are disclosed in note 19. 
 
 

1.4.4 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 
 

The treatment for the biological assets has been made in terms of International Public Sector 

Accounting Standards - 27 (IPSAS-27). Biological assets of the University shown as a separate 

asset in the Statement of financial position in terms of the IPSAS 27. 
 
 

Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at subsequent reporting dates at fair 

value less estimated point of sale costs, unless fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

The gain on initial recognition of biological assets at fair value, and change in fair value of 

biological asset during the period in net surplus/deficit. 
 

 

1.4.5 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 
 

The University has invested its unutilised funds that were received for research, projects and other 

ancillary activities temporally on term deposits at the State Banks. The interest accrued for same 

has been adjusted to the respective ledger accounts and shown as income in the statements of 

financial performance. Similarly, the funds received for scholarships have also been invested in 

term deposits at the State Banks. Further, details on investments and interests income on 

investments are disclosed in note 13. 
 
 

1.4.6 INVENTORIES 
 

Inventories of the University have been physically verified and valued at cost on First in First Out 

basis (FIFO) as at 31st December 2018. The inventory of the University classifies mainly in to 

Stationery, Building materials, Chemicals and glassware and other inventories.   

  

The cost of chemicals and glassware purchased from research grants are fully charged to the 

respective research grants as expenditure at the time of purchasing. However, material inventory 

balances remained at the end of the year as per the physical verification reports have been 

adjusted to the respective accounts. 
 

Further details on inventories are disclosed in Note No 9 of the Accounts. 

 

 

 
 

Class of Assets % 

Buildings 5% 

Plant Machinery & Tools 10% 

Motor Vehicles 20% 

Furniture & fittings 10% 

Office & Other Equipment 20% 

Lab & Teaching Equipment 20% 

Library Books & Periodicals 20% 

Cloaks 20% 
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1.4.7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

Trade and other receivables are stated at the estimated amount as per SLPSAS 01 that it is due to 

be received within twelve months after the reporting date. No provision has been made for bad 

and doubtful receivables and payments.  

 

1.4.8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 
 

Cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in the statement of financial position and the cash flow 

statement comprises balances of Current and Residential Foreign Currency (RFC) accounts. 
 

Further details on cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in the Note No 2 of the statement of 

accounts. 

 

1.4.9 GRATUITY 
 

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position is the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation calculated according to the provision of the gratuity Act No 12 of 1983 at the 

date of statement of financial position. 
 

1.4.10 UNIVERSITY PROVIDENT FUND AND EMPLOYEES’ TRUST FUND 
 

Employees of the University are entitled for University Provident Fund (UPF) contributions and 

Employees Trust Fund (ETF) contributions in line with respective statutes and regulations. The 

University contributes defined percentages of (15%) and (3%) on gross emoluments of employees 

to an approved employees’ provident fund and to the employees’ trust fund respectively, which 

are operated externally. 

 

Further, Employees’ pension scheme is also operated as a retirement benefit to the University 

employees in contributing 8% to the pension fund from the University.   
 

1.4.11 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
 

Government grants for capital and recurrent expenditure recognised only when they are received 

by the University keeping in line with the provisions of the SLPSAS 01. The recurrent grant 

received for the year has been recognised as income in the statement of financial performance and 

capital grant received by the University has been recognised and accounted in the capital accounts 

through capital grant spent and unspent accounts and the effect of that are directly incorporated 

with the statement of financial position. 
 

1.4.12 PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

Provisions are recognised when the University has a present obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligations and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. No 

provisions for contingent liabilities have been made as there were no   cases where the legal 

obligations have been accurately estimated.  Therefore, the liabilities in connection with the legal 

cases for which the financial obligations are not estimated clearly and exactly are shown as a note 

and all the adjustments and disclosures are made in keeping with the provisions of the SLPSAS 

08. 
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1.4.13 REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 

The Government grant for recurrent expenditure and income of research grants, projects and other 

academic assignments have been recognized as revenue when they received and all other 

revenues are recognised on an accrual basis. 
 

1.4.14 EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION 
 

Expenses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement on the basis of a direct 

association between the cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. All expenditure 

incurred in running of the University and in maintaining the properties in a state of efficiency has 

been charged to the income and expenditure statement. 

 

1.4.15 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

The contingent liabilities in connection with 07 legal cases instituted against the University as at 

31st December 2018 are amounting to Rs. 13,267,063.90 However, the amount of compensation 

cannot be estimated reliably and thus no provisions have been made the final accounts. The 

details of contingent liabilities are given in Annex – 01. 

 

1.4.16 CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 

The contingent assets in connection with legal cases instituted by the University as at 31st 

December 2018 are amounting to Rs. 364,514.60 (01 Case) The details of contingent liabilities 

are given in Annex – 02. 

 

1.4.17 ACCELERATING HIGHER EDUCATION EXPANSION AND DEVELOPMENT 

PROGRAM (AHEAD) 

 

During the year ended 31st December 2018, University has received totalling of Rs.4,127,617.10 

and out of which amounted to Rs. 1,126,407.42 has been incurred for the purpose of the project 

and the balance money of the project was remained in the bank account operated by the 

University. The accounts of the project were maintained separately under the supervision of the 

ministry and UGC and which were not associated with the University accounts. The details of the 

project are given in Annex – 03. 
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Vice Chancellor 

Rajarata University of Sri Lanka 
 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statement of the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka for 

the year ended 31st December 2018 and other legal and regulations required for that in terms of 

Section 12 of the audit Act, No 19 of 2018. 

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

1.1. QUALIFIED OPINION 

The audit of financial statements of the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 

31st  December 2018, comprising the statement of financial performance, statement of the 

change in equity, cash flow statement for the year ended, summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information, was carried out under my directions 

in pursuance of provisions in article 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist 

Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act and No 38 

of Financial Act in accordance with the 154 (6) of the Constitution,  my report would be 

tabled at the Parliament in due Course. The financial statement of Rajarata University as at 

31st December 2018 and the statement of financial performance and the cash flow 

statement for the year ended have indicated the true and fair state in accordance with the 

Sri Lanka  Public Accounting Standards is the my opinion except the matters affected 

explained in the basis for qualified Opinion in my report.   

  

1.2. BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION   

(a) DEVIATIONS FROM ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

In accordance with the 42 section of No 07 of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the cost of 

the properties, Plant and equipment was Rs.421, 066,408 of 09 assets subjects even though 

they have already been completely depreciated according to the 31st December of previous 

year, still utilizing and the necessary adjustments have not been taken to include into the 

accounts after revaluation.   

 

(b) ACCOUNTING DEFICIENCIES  

(i) The reviewing year financial statement indicated the accrued expenses as Rs.50, 481,478. 

(except accrued expenses of faculties) when calculating it was found as Rs.67,489,879, thus 

the reviewing year accrued expenses and the year deficiency has shown as Rs.16,875,401 

less. 

 

(ii) The medical faculty and the agriculture faculty have charged of Rs.123, 248 as payee tax from 

the officers of the previous year and same has not been paid to the Commissioner General, 

Inland Revenue and credited to miscellaneous account of the University. 
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(iii) Even though the Rs.586,600 worth of Information technology equipment purchased during 

the previous year, the retention money of Rs.58, 600 has not been capitalized and  only the 

net amount of Rs.527,940 has been capitalized. 

 

(iv) Even though the purchase value of property, plant and equipment of Rs.190,207,555 has 

shown as the investment activities in the cash flow statement, in that, it has shown the non-

cash flow of Rs.31,680,755 of credit purchase and the adjustments to the accounts. 

Therefore, the net cash flow of investment activities has increased by that amount. 

 

(v) The expenditure for working in progress shown as Rs.305,070,708 as the investment 

activities in the cash flow, It has included the payable balance as  of Rs.25,230,620 which is 

not a cash flow, thus reducing the net cash flow by the same amount in the investment 

activities. 

 

(vi) The depreciation of 16 ledger accounts of building and infrastructure facilities has been 

calculated and accounted by reducing of Rs.2, 254,486. 

 

(vii) The balance in the NRFC Account of the Bank of Ceylon as at 31st December 2018 was 

119,737 and when this amount converted into the Rupees they have converted by the selling 

price instead of purchasing price. There by the balance of Rs.475,357 in the Bank account of 

the previous year has shown increasingly.  

 

(viii) The selling amount of Rs.542,598 has been included as selling of fixed assets as scrap assets 

in the income of selling old stocks in the reviewing year. The real cost and the accumulated 

depreciation have not been adjusted in the accounts. 

 

(c)  LACK OF EVIDENCE FOR AUDIT 

The detail schedules for rental house retention deposit of Rs.832,936 in the creditors and 

supplies retention deposits of Rs.14,480,878 in the financial statements have not been 

submitted  for Auditing. 

 

(d) DIFFERENCES  

(i) It has been observed that there was a difference of Rs.5, 833,217 of the balance according to 

the stock verification report and the amount included in the financial statement as at 31st 

December 2018. 
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(ii) The balance in sub schedule of the non-current assets of property, plant and equipment 

indicated as Rs.6,097,755,804 where as it indicates in the financial statement as 

Rs.6,098,003,433. Therefore, the difference of Rs.247, 629 has been observed. 

 

(iii) The financial statement of the reviewing year indicated the accrued expenses (except the 

expenses of faculties) as Rs.69, 531,077 whereas the sub schedule submitted with the 

financial statement indicated that as Rs.66, 192,277. Therefore, the difference of Rs.3, 

338,800 in the occurred expenses account observed.  

 

(iv) An unidentified difference of Rs.318, 970 has been observed between the sub schedule of 

financial statement which was forwarded indicated that the value of various deposits as Rs.2, 

992,784 whereas the ledger account indicates as Rs.2.673,814. 

 

(v) The difference of Rs.465, 000 observed in between the three expenditure   subjects in the No 

28 sub schedule forwarded for total expenditure of the financial statement and the 

expenditure program statement.  

 

(vi) It has been observed that the difference of Rs.137,450 of the balance of three income 

accounts forwarded in the financial performance statement when comparing with the ledger 

balances. 

 

The Audit has been carried out in accordance with the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. The 

responsibility under this auditing standard, further same has been explained in the responsibility of 

an auditor in relation to the auditing of the financial statements. It is in the opinion that the 

auditing evidences obtained were sufficient and appropriate for the basis of making my qualified 

opinion.  

 

1.3. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for 

such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 

of financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or 

error. 

 

It is the responsibility of the management to decide whether to continue of maintaining the 

University when preparing the financial statements. If the management is in opinion that 

the University of Rajarata to be handed over to the government or cease the operation  
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when there is no alternative for that, except  that, the accounts should be maintained on 

the basis of continuance and the disclosure of the matter whether to maintain the 

University continuously is also the responsibility of the management. 

 

The responsibility of the reporting process of University finance should be taken by the 

Governing authority of the University. 

 

In accordance with the sub section 16 (I) of No 19 of 2018 national Audit Act, the university 

should maintain the books and record of all  income, expenditure, Assets and liabilities in 

order to enable the preparation of annual and periodically financial statement of the 

University. 

1.4. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR AUDITING THE FINANCIAL STATMENTS  
As a whole, an Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

amounts and disclosure in the financial statements. It is intended to given reasonable 

opinion as the financial statements do not reflect true and fair picture due to frond and 

errors. When carrying out auditing according to the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, it always 

does not mean that qualitative disclosure about the financial statements could confirm. 

Further, the economic decision taken by following this report definitely could affect their 

decision. 
     

I have been carried out auditing with the professional judgment and suspicion according to 

Sri Lanka Auditing standards. Furthermore, 

 Whether, due to fund or error in making those risk assessments, including the 

assessment of the risk of material misstatements of financial statements. This could be 

stop up by adopting or obtaining sufficient and appropriate suitable audit evidences. It 

is understood that the damage caused due to the fund is higher than the damage 

caused declaration of false statements. 

 In order to planning the suitable periodically auditing system, study carried out about 

the internal control of the University but no idea to give an opinion about the 

effectiveness of the internal control. 

 It has been appreciated that adopting of reasonable accounting policies and estimates 

and the relative disclosures by the management. 

 In order to consider the continuance of the university activities due to the incidents 

and reasons through the audit evidence obtained, it is decided to adopt the basis of 

continuance process for accounting. If there is a reasonable doubt about the 

continuance in operation, it should be disclosed in the financial statement and if those 

disclosures not enough the auditor’s opinions to be highlighted. However, continuance 

in operation would be closed due to the future incidents and situations. 
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 The presentation of financial statement with disclosures structure and content were 

appreciated. The transactions and the incidents for those affected have been included 

in the financial statements. 

I identified the important audit observations, main mistakes in internal control and other 

weaknesses informed to those who control the activities. 

 

2. REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATIONS REQUIREMENTS 
The special provisions have been included for the following requirement in the No 19 of 2018 

National Audit Act. 
 

As per the requirement of section (a) 12 of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, except the 

details affect that I have mentioned in the basis part for my report opinion, all other details 

and information obtained for auditing and it is my opinion that the University is maintaining 

proper financial report. 
 

As per the requirement of section 6 (i) (c) (iii) of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, the 

financial statements forwarded by the University is agreeable with the previous year. 
 

As per the requirement of section 6 (ii) (c) (iv) of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, the 

recommendations made in the previous year have been included in the forwarded financial 

statements. 
 

There was no attention to express anything below due to the fact that the process followed, 

obtained evidences and limit to the important matters etc. 
  

2.1. As per the requirement of section 12 (d) of No 19 of 2018 except the following observation, a 

council member of University could directly deal with the same agreement or otherwise if 

the connection deviation from the normal activities. 

In order to rent a building for the medical faculty, the agreement signed between VC’s agent 

and the Registrar amounting to Rs.660, 000 transaction has not been disclosed in the 

Accounts. 

2.2. Non Compliance with section 12 (f) of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, Laws, Rules and 

Regulations. 
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REFERENCE TO LAW, RULES AND REGULATIONS NON COMPLIANCE    
a) No 24 of 2017 Inland Revenue Act.    Withholding tax has not been deducted  

       from lectures who participated for  

       academic Committee meeting and    

       entertainment Allowances of Rs.126,000 

 from the period of April to December 2018 of 

the faculty of Social Sciences and humanity. 

         

b) Financial Regulation of the Democratic  Copies of Internal Audit reports have not 

 Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka   been Submitted to the Auditor General. 

 F.R. 134 (3)          

    

(c) 3.1 Section of XX chapter of   All employees of all higher education  

 University Establishment Code. institute to enter/note the entry and exit time 

whereas the academic staff had not done so. 

(d) Circulars 

 Secretary Finance Ministry The combine allowance for foreign visit 

 F.R 01/2015/01 and circular could be paid if the sponsor/ institute,   

 Dated 15th May does not provide food/meals and   

        food/meals and accommodation. Where as  

 the Previous year on 03 occasions, the combine 

Allowances of Rs.1,499,486 had been paid 

without Confirming whether they provide meals 

and the accommodations.  As per the F.R. 237 

(c) the payment had been paid without 

payment vouchers and invitation cards. 

 

ii) Public Finance Circular No 03/2015  Granting of more than Rs.25,000 /= for 07  

 Dated 14 July 2015 non-executive officers each and even though it 

has to be settled within 10 days After the task, 

they have settled in beyond 10 days and within 

the period of 05- 199 days, 04 officers had 

taken prior advances for a specific task and the 

amount of Rs.9,600 to Rs.56094 settlement had 

been delayed, two officers taken total of 

Rs.15000 as an advance and to deposit without 

been spent taken from 29-109- days, 11 officers 

had taken an advance over Rs.100,000 each 
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   without proper approval whereas maximum 

Rs.100,000 could be given at once for a specific 

task. This has been over rule the provisions in 

the specific circular. 

 

iii). University Grand Commission Circular   Rs,100 could be given for a panel board for  

 No. 981 dated 23 April 2012.  verbal interviews for each candidate where as 

two faculties including all the members had 

given over payment of Rs.334,600 for 30 panel 

boards. 
 

 No. 6/2013 dated 25 June 2015 The telephone allowance entitled officers are 

given only Rs.5000 and as per the finance 

committee the allowance has been increased 

and paid Rs.7500.00 

 

 No, 15/2015 dated 17 Nov 2015 As per U.G.C. circular payment could be given 

for paper markings subjected to the result of 

the examination be issued within three months. 

The social and humanities faculty had issued 

results of delaying 03- 09 months and paid Rs.7, 

945,442.00 for the delay period. 
 

 No. 01/2016 dated 01st Jan 2016 i). Rs.30/= is giving for Checking the post 

graduate degree and where as it has given 

Rs.50/=. Therefore, Rs.27,860 has been given 

additionally. 

 ii) Rs.1500 is given for education board meeting 

each and by giving Rs.2000 each, Rs.52,500 has 

been paid additionally. 

 iii) Rs.63802 has been paid over with the 

approval of the finance committee which has 

exceeded according to the circular given for the 

holding of post of administrative officers for 

external courses. 

 iv) Rs.2000 is given for invigilator as combine 

allowance for 03hrs for conducting and 

providing marks for a practical test. Whereas  
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 Rs.7,70,000 has given for a 40 mts test by 

Rs.1000 each. 

 v) Rs.50 is given for a member of the 

examination board for appearing for a student 

for a verbal interview, never the less, it has 

been paid RS.150 each of Rs.44,100.00 

 Paragraph 5.5 of No. 04/2016   Separate note to be disclosed for each 

 Circular Dated 01 March 2016 self-earning courses in the financial statements 

and same accounts have not been disclosed in 

the financial statements of the previous year. 
 

2.3. In accordance with the section 12 (h) of No. 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, the University has 

used power and authority not relevant to the University activities. 

 

2.4. According to the requirement of section (h) 12 of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act, except 

following observations, the university has not utilized its resources efficiently, effectively and 

carefully according to the periodically rules and regulations. 

 

 

(a) The main entrance building has been constructed not according to the specifications and 

estimates given by the state engineering company and tiles have been laid down not 

according to the specifications and standard of the state engineering company. Therefore, 

the technical requirement has not been met and the difference prices of a tile per meter 

given by the Estate Engineering Company and the used tile for the floor of the building was 

Rs.1.487 and therefore, Rs.940,278 additional price advantage obtained by the contractor. 

 

(b) The bidders called for construction of main entrance building “A” and “B” in two stages was 

cancelled due to the expiration of their CIDA registration and called new prices/BOQS later. 

The construction of “A” building was given to the prior lowers bidder and for the 

construction of ”B” Building the bidder had been given the higher prices than the prior 

lowest price. Therefore, the Rs.7,303,917 had been lost to the university fund. 

 

i) As per the chapter 3.2.2. (a) of procurement guidelines, the advertisement should publish in 

the national paper which has more sales in the country. whereas the more procurements 

subjected to auditing has been published in the one newspaper (daily news) without making 

a reasonable competitiveness. 
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ii) An agreement has been signed for Rs.143,000,000 on 24 august  2017 to construct a 

building for the CDCE without prior agreements and even though an advance of 

Rs.16,479,500 given to commence the work, still construction has not been began. 
 

 

iii) The procurement competition has been limited due to the fact that including the limited 

conditions in the tender documents when procurement process made to provide security 

for the university for the amount of Rs.5,257,662 per month in the year 2018/2019. 
 

3. OTHER OBSERVATION 

(a) The university has not made any attention to the activities relevant to the university scope as 

mentioned in the 2030 year agenda of the united nations in respect of sustainable 

development. The activities plan has not included anything in this regard and the provision in 

the annual budget also has not been reserved. 

(b) The mass communication center of social and humanities faculty established with 29 

communication equipment without a qualified technical officer and also had received 

Rs.1,620,175, from the HETC project in several occasions in the year 2014. At present those 

equipment are handled by A non-qualified officer. 

(c) A university lecture has been paid combine and unattached allowance of Rs.1,075,256 to 

attend for two (2) seminars one was an international conference on arts, education and 

science (ICAES) on 24th , 25th  of June 2018 and other one was to sign an agreement in sao polo 

in brazil on 28th  June 2018 for 09 days. He has participated only for ICAES seminar and there 

was no evidence to prove that to participate to sign an agreement in Brazil and spent 05 days 

and paid Rs.374,600 ($2300) for that period. 

(d) A University professor has been paid an unattached allowance for 09 days 75 dollars per day to 

attend for international seminar in brazil on 24th and 25th of 2018 and to sign an agreement 

Aao Paulo in brazil on 28th June 2018. As a member of government delegation could only be 

considered for the signing an agreement in Brazil on 28th June 2018. Therefore, he is entitled 

only 40 dollars per day for the rest of 07 days period and for that he has been paid 35 dollars 

per day additionally 245 dollars or Rs.39,690. 

(e) The action has not been taken to absorb the deposits which are tender deposits value of 

Rs.1,656,710 from the year 2012to 2016. An existing miscellaneous deposits of Rs.1,134,161 

and contract retention money of Rs.49,043,540 were kept in the accounts for 2 to 12 years 

which the contractor had not paid any attention. 

(f) The advance of Rs.310,000 taken by an officer from the University for the DAYATA KIRULA in 

2010 has not been settled to date. 
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(g) The action has not been taken to clear the amount of Rs.250,138 long outstanding advance 

given for various activities and 05 credit balances of Rs.38,970 during the previous year. 

 

(h) The action has not been taken to close up the 03 account balances of Rs.5,743,734 received for 

various projects even after completion of same long time back and has been shown as other 

fund in the financial statement. 

(i) The action has not been taken to recover the total amount of Rs.48,857,874 of 10 bonds given 

to professors and lectures to follow the post graduate after taking academic leave have not 

completed same from 2 to 7 years and had violated the bond agreement have not disclosed in 

the financial statements. Even though disclosed in the accounts, the University has not taken 

any action for violating the bond agreement and each officer is liable to pay of Rs.411,844 

since the year2016. 

(j) The details of conducting lectures submitted for auditing for checking, it was found that the 08 

internal lectures of management faculty had not covered 20% to 60% of the lectures of the 

total period to be covered, 14 lectures of social and humanity faculty from 89 hrs to 257 hrs 

and 12 lectures of agriculture faculty from 200hrs to 405hrs period of time had not covered 

the lectures. 

(k) There was an accession where 05 internal lectures of management faculty have not covered 

the lectures during the period from 27% to 58%. Therefore, the quality of the courses 

conducted can’t be satisfied. When comparing number of students entered each year, the 

percentage not completing the degree increasing year by year and that was 10% of the 

different academic sections. The 2012/2013 academic year the total percentage of not 

completing the degree has increased up to 29%. The percentages of not completing the degree 

of BIT and THM from 2010/11 to 2012/13 have increased up to 41% and 23% respectively. 

(l) Even though the provision has not made by a circular for the payment for exam board meeting, 

a board member has been paid Rs.2000 totaling Rs.36000 with the approval of finance 

committee. 

 

  

 W.P.C. Wicramarathne 

 Auditor General 
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regarding the report of the Auditor 

General on the Accounts of the RUSL for 

the year ended 31st December 2018 in terms 

of section 108(2) of the Universities Act no 

16 of 1978  
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The University clarifications and action taken already about the observations made in the Auditor 

General’s report on the financial statement of the Rajarata University of Sri Lanka for the year 

ended 31st December 2018 and other legal and regulations required for that in terms of section 12 

of the National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018. 

 

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2018 of the Rajarata University 

has been submitted to the Auditor General on 26th March 2019 in terms of the sub - section 106 (2) 

of the University Act, No 16 of 1978 and sub – section 107(13) 7a of the Financial Act, No 38 of 

1978. The Auditor General’s report dated 09th July 2019 was received by the University on 25th July 

2019 for which clarifications and action taken already for the observations made in the report are 

listed below as per the sequences in the audit report. 

 

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1.2. THE BASIS FOR OPINION 

(a) DEVIATIONS FROM ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The revaluation of the fixed assets is being progress at present and after the verification 

process, the action will be taken to make necessary adjustments to take value into the 

accounts of which have been completed the deprecation for the year 2019. 

 

(b)  ACCOUNTING DEFICIENCIES 

i) There has been an accounting error as number of payment vouchers applicable to the 

year 2018 have been missed out to accrue to the expenses accounts. However, action 

has been taken to accounting same as previous year adjustment in the year 2019. 

 

ii) This amount was not a payee tax and this was a royalty deducted from the payments 

given to university external resource contributors. There is no requirement of sending 

this to money to the commissioner, Inland Revenue. This money has been reserved to 

be sent to the respective institutions those who employed in and action has already 

been taken to pay this amount to the respective institutions. 

 

iii) The payment value of the year 2018 has only been taken to the assets accounts. This 

mount of Rs.58,600.00 has already been added to the assets by paying the amount 

already to the supplier concerned. 

 

iv)  When preparing the cash flow, the total value of the assets acquired during the year 

mentioned as cash flow in the assets statement of the balance sheet. In that, the assets 

received on credit basis have also included and the credit value of that assets indicate 

by the earning from the operational activities in the cash flow. However, the difference 

adjusted cash flow statement could be forwarded accordingly. 
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v) When preparing the cash flow, the total value of the assets acquired during the year 

mentioned as cash flow in the assets statement of the balance sheet. In that, the assets 

received on credit basis have also included and the credit value of that assets indicate 

by the earning from the operational activities in the cash flow. However, the difference 

adjusted cash flow statement could be forwarded accordingly. 

 

vi) The building ledger Nos, of 210120,210137,210140,210157,210112,210142,210167 and 

210183 have been handed over to the University for construction before the year 2018. 

Therefore, the depreciation has to be calculated for the whole year 2018. The 

calculation of depreciation for the whole year 2018 for the payment made in this year 

for the works completed before the year 2018 is more prudential. The depreciation has 

been calculated for the building ledger Nos, of 210103 and 210192 projects from the 

month of the projects handed over to the University in the year 2018. The balance for 

the building No 210406 project reserved in the accounts for the year 2018 was not 

Rs.696,575.00 and is Rs.3,669,776.63. The depreciation has been calculated for these 

projects from the month of final payments made. 

 

Ledger No, Depreciation 
(Rs) 

Depreciation 
Accounted (Rs.) 

Difference (Rs) 

210176 
210182 
210189 
210199  

1,023,446 
42,378 
53,818 

177,528 

582,184 
21,189 

- 
29,588 

441,262 
21,189 
53,818 

147,940 

 664,209 
 

The action will be taken to include the above under depreciation value of Rs.664, 209 

as previous adjustment in the accounts of 2019. 

 

vii) Action has been taken to correct the amount of Rs. 475,357.00 shown increasingly in 

the financial statement in the current year when converting dollar balance in the NRFC 

account No bearing 75704737 at the bank of Ceylon as at 31st December 2018 in to the 

rupee value due to the calculating by using the selling price instead of purchasing price. 

The financial activities in the current year and other end of the year balances in the 

accounts will not be affected, except raising the balances in the faculties’ development 

funds due to the error conversion. Action will be taken to adjust in to the accounts 

accordingly in the year 2019. 

 

viii) The depreciation and cost of the fixed assets sold as scraps have not been removed 

from the accounts due to the fact that difficulty to identify the cost of the assets 

removed physically and individual basis. Action will be taken to maintain proper 

accounts after completion of the process of verification and revaluation of the fixed 

assets and computerizing the fixed assets register. 



 

91 
 
 

 

R A J A R A T A  U N I V E R S I T Y  O F  S R I  L A N K A  

A n n u a l  R e p o r t            2 0 1 8  

 

(c)  LACK OF EVIDENCE FOR AUDIT 

Action will be taken to submit the sub schedule for these balances with the accounts of 

2019. 

 

(d) DIFFERENCES 

i) The value of Rs.2,193,326 purchasing capital assets has been included in the physical 

stock verification value of the central stores Rs.11,056,214. Accordingly, the stock 

difference in the stores was not Rs.2,664,323 and is Rs.470,906. Therefore, the 

difference in all stores between the stock verification value and the book value was not 

Rs.5,833,217 and is Rs.3,639,891. Action will be taken to compare this difference and 

correct when preparing the financial statement accordingly in the year 2019. 

 

ii) The amount of Rs.6,098,003,433 mentioned in the statement of financial position was 

correct and when preparing sub – schedule for that amount of Rs.249,709 under ledger 

No 210188 for the payment of bill amount to be added to the total column value of the 

building. The amount of Rs.2,082 under the provision of depreciation in the same 

amount for the year 2018 also to be added to the sub – schedule and correct 

accordingly. However, due to this, the state of the assets in the financial statement will 

not be affected and the corrected sub – schedule could be forwarded. 

 

iii) The difference between these two amounts of Rs.3,338,800 was the amount reserved 

for Auditor General department for auditing and same has not been mentioned in the 

sub – schedule. However, this will not affect the state of the liabilities in the financial 

statement and this sub – schedule could be re-forwarded. 

 

iv) When comparing the amount of Rs.367,210.00 mentioned in the note No 07 as 

receivable money orders in the statement of the financial position and the amount of 

Rs. 318,970.00 included in that debit balance has been credited into the same account 

and debited to the miscellaneous deposit account adjusting the ledger accounts 

accordingly. The difference between the value of financial statement and the ledger 

account shown due to not including this adjustment in the forwarded financial 

statement. This will be adjusted accordingly under the previous year statement when 

forwarding the financial statement for the year 2019. 

 

v) This was an error occurred when expenditure noted down in the expenditure 

programme statement and the value of sub schedule No 28 forwarded for total 

expenditure in the financial statement was correct. However, there was no difference 

in the total value of the two documents due to this and adjusted accounts could be 

forwarded accordingly. 
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vi) This matter is combined with the above matter (iv) and when reconciliation the value of 

Rs.367,210 mentioned in the note No 07 in the statement of financial position, 

  

To registration of suppliers income account  Rs.92,750.00 

To registration of students account Rs.41,550.00 

To students’ hostel fees account Rs.3,150.00 
     

 the value as of Rs.137,450 entered in the accounts. There was a difference in the 

balances of 03 income ledger accounts and the balance in the financial performance 

statement due to the same value not taking into the financial performance statement. 

This difference will be adjusted as previous year adjustment when preparing the 

accounts for the year 2019. 

 

2. REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATIONS REQUIREMENT 

Action will be taken to disclose these matters in the financial statements in due course. 

 

2.2. In accordance with the requirement of 12 (f) of No 19 of 2018 National Audit Act except the 

following observations, non- compliance of relevant rules, regulations and University 

Council’s decisions. 

 

 (a)  NO 24 OF 2017 INLAND REVENUE ACT 

Action will be taken to deduct taxes correctly from the year 2019 according to the Inland 

Revenue Act. 

 

(b) FINANCIAL REGULATION OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA  

– F.R. 134 (3) 

 The copies of all internal audit report will be forwarded to University Government Audit 

Superintendent. 

 

(c) SECTION 3.1. OF XX CHAPTER OF UNIVERSITY ESTABLISHMENT CODE 

 All deans will be informed to give advice for the academic staff accordingly. 

 

(d) CIRCULARS 

i) Secretary Finance Ministry Circular F.M. 01/2015/01 and circular dated 15th May 2015.  

Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

 

ii) Public Finance Circular No 03/2015 dated 14th July 2015. 

Action will be taken according to the above circular when releasing advance money by 

the University in future. 
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 iii)    University Grand Commission Circulars 

 No 981 dated 23rd April 2012 

Action will be taken according to above circular in future. 

 

 No 6/2015 dated 25th June 2015 

Action will be taken according to above circular in future 

 

 No 15/2015 dated 17th November 2015 

Action will be taken according to the above circular. 

 

 No 01/2016 dated 01st January 2016 

i) Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

ii) Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

iii) Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

iv) Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

v) Action will be taken according to the above circular in future. 

 

 Section 5.5. of No 04/2016 dated 01st March 2016 

Noted to disclose as a single note from the next year. 

 

2.4. (a) Action will be initiated to recover money from the respective contractor or consultants if 

there is money to be received of this contract on the recommendation of the audit and 

management committee in future. 

 

 i) Action will be taken to publish in the Sinhala and English newspaper which has highest 

sales according to the procument guidelines in future. 

 ii) Action will be taken to commence the building construction with the relevant approval 

in future. 

iii) Action will be taken to include the correct information when preparing the tender 

documents and the relevant procument documents will be prepared accordingly in 

future. 

 

2. OTHER OBSERVATIONS 

 

(a) Action has already been taken to obtain the relevant information from the all Deans and 

the implementation of operational policies and guideline procedures will be carried out 

accordingly in future. 

 

(b) It has been requested from the U.G.C. for relevant recruitment. 
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(c) Action will be taken to recover the money on the recommendation of the audit and 

management committee. 

 

(d) Action will be taken to recover the money on the recommendation of the audit and 

management committee. 

 

(e) Action will be taken to forward after correction of these balances with the annual 

accounts. 

 

(f) It has been decided to conduct a preliminary inquiry to identify the delays and 

irregularities occurred when releasing and settling this advances which was approved  

 by the council on the recommendation given by the audit and management committee 

held on 25th November 2019. 

 

(g) Computer Loan 

01) Mr. G.D. Siripala – Action will be taken to deduct the loan when releasing the 

provident fund. 

 

02) Mr. R.M.S. Rathnayake – recovering the loan commenced from the month of 

April 2019. 

 
 Office Staff Loan 

 03) Mr. W. Dayarathne – Action will be taken to deduct the loan when 

  Releasing the provident fund. 

 

 04) Mr. S.G.S. Wicramanayake – The loan has been settled. 

 

 05) Mr. U.G.V.M. Gunathilaka – Action will be taken to settle once the 

  Balance of loan money received from the University of Peradeniya. 

 

(h) This has been forwarded for finance committee approval to be used relevant funds for 

other activities. 

 

(i) The committee has been appointed to recover the value/amount from those who 

violated the agreements and bonds according to the University Grand Commission 

internal audit circular No 02/2018. The committee has decided to check the possibility 

of recovering the money later from the Professors and Lectures those who violated the 

bond agreements and action will be taken accordingly in future. 

 

(j) The advice has already been given to the Deans and Lectures concerned and action will 

be taken accordingly in future. 
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Future Projection Report based on 

Sustainable Development, cited under 

Section 17(d) of part III of National Audit 

act, No. 19 of 2018 
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Future Projection Report based on Sustainable Development, cited under Section 

17(d) of part III of National Audit act, No. 19 of 2018 
 

1. Currently the University Provides purified (Using Reverse Osmosis Process) 

drinking water for all students and staff. Furthermore expect to escalate 

availability of purified water by increasing the number RO filters.   

2. Collaboration with the Central Environment Authority and the faculty of Social 

Sciences & Humanities initiated garbage disposal project. According to that the 

University is intruding garbage segregation projects in other faculties, hostels, 

canteens, offices and etc. 

3. Initiate a project with the cost of Rs.200 million for waste water purification. In 

order to release waste water in environment friendly. 

4. According to the Green University concept, Maintain a green university 

environment and rain  well water is used to maintain green environment 

5. Expect to continue the tree plantation program introduced by the faculty of Social 

Sciences and Humanities and the Faculty of Agriculture for a sustainable 

environment.  

6. 

 

Ensure equal access for all female and male to affordable and quality, technical 

and vocational education programs conducted by the University. 

7. Accommodate more students in external educational programs to produce skilled, 

knowledgeable and employable Graduates, Diploma holders and Certificate 

holders in who were not qualified for University Education. 

8. Accommodating more and ensuring gender equality to attend post graduate 

degree programs and post graduate diploma programs conducted by the faculty of 

Management Studies and the faculty of Social Sciences and Humanities. 

9. Continue the organizing workshop on Biology, Mathematics, Physics, Chemistry, 

ICT and Technology for GCE Advance level students from schools of North 

Central Province with the aim of elevating standards of AL education in the area.  

10. Continue and escalate conducting knowledge dissemination programme 

conducted by the six faculties 
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